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Financial and Operational Highlights
HBEREERE

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31BLEE

% change
increase/
(decrease)
®m, CRD)
2018 2017 % 2 B
Revenue (HK$’million) Wz (B &E%5T) 346 562 (38.4%)
Gross profit (HK$’million) EF(FEET) 175 289 (39.3%)
Operating loss (HK$’million) KB (5 EET) (146) (221) (33.9%)
Per share =14
Basic loss per share (HK cents)  SRXEZAREREGE) (29.14) (31.96) (8.8%)
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) &RXESSEE(ENL) (29.14) (31.96) (8.8%)
Net asset value per share (HK$) EIREEFE(ET) 0.05 0.30 (83.3%)
Share price IR B
— High (HK$) —=(GEr) 1.430 2.120 (32.5%)
— Low (HK$) — RCET) 1.140 1.200 (5.0%)
Financial ratios B 75 b =
Gross profit margin (%) EFZE(%) 50.6% 51.4% (0.8) ptE D24
Average inventory turnover (days) P& EEE(H) 245 238 2.9%
Average trade receivables turnover T4 [ Ui B 7 & 2 £
(days) (H) 4 37 10.8%
Average trade payables turnover 5[ (<8R 2 E E HA
(days) (H) 194 123 57.7%
Gearing ratio (%) BEBERE(%)
— Borrowing to total assets — [EEHHBEAE 68.7% 35.5% 33.2ptENE
— Borrowing to net asset value = — fEEH&EFE 1,356.4% 103.7%  1252.7 ptE D
Return on total assets (%) BEEDLIR(%) (28.4%) (33.2%) 4.8 ptEDE
Return on shareholders’ fund (%) RXE&ESREIHR(%) (560.9%) (96.8%)  464.1 ptEDE
As at 31 March
M3AH31AH
% change
increase/
(decrease)
®gm, CRD)
2018 2017 % 2B
Shareholders’ funds (HK$’000) BERES(FE7T) 37,203 216,326 (82.8%)
Total assets (HK$’000) WEE(FHET) 734,639 631,341 16.4%
Number of shares in issue (‘000) B ZE{TRME A (TFAL) 716,190 716,190 —

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 04



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

The board of directors (“Board” and “Directors” respectively)
of Vestate Group Holdings Limited (“Company”) presents the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018 (“Year”).

GROUP’S BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and retailing
of a diversified range of footwear products under its own brands,
namely, ACUPUNCTURE, ARTEMIS, COUBER.G, FORLERIA,
A+A2, TRU-NARI, and WALACI, through its self-managed retail
shops (“Self-managed Shops”), concession points in department
stores (“Concession Points”) and franchised stores (“Franchised
Stores”). The Group possesses an extensive sales network across
the regions of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), Hong Kong
and Taiwan.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group operated a total of 25 Self-
managed Shops (4 in the PRC and 21 in Hong Kong), 280
Concession Points (270 in the PRC, 2 in Hong Kong and 8 in
Taiwan) and 1 Franchised Stores in the PRC. During the Year,
the Group had a net decrease of 13 Self-managed Shops, 88
Concession Points and 59 Franchised Stores. The following table
summarizes the number and distribution of Self-managed Shops,
Concession Points and Franchised Stores (collectively, “Retail
Points”) in terms of geographical regions as at 31 March 2018 as
compared to last year.

BEREEZEEBERARTAXANEZTS (D5
RIEBE |NEE ) EFARFLREME LA
(B[ A K@) B E2018F3A31H ILF &
(IRFEDZEBRIRAFEE

SERBOEE

AREITEXBREBHBETEL(BE
ED > BERAEHEEM(EFHEHER DX
B e b (B ERDERETEAR
& # ACUPUNCTURE - ARTEMIS - COUBER.
G - FORLERIA - A+A2 * TRU-NARI }2 WALACI
ZEBERER ARERTEAREXME( H
B FERGEMERERZHERE -

R2018F 3 A31H » AEBEKLLE S H25MBE
JEARBTAHRE R 21 BN ES) « 280 MH
HEZ (270 BN P E - 2B R E B L8N
REB)RABMNRTREZEHEEESRS - XA
FE - AEBZEEE  FHEMRFTLEE
JEFE D BIF R A3 88 K59 o N &RM At
2018 F 3 A1 ARMEE D 2B E IS  1FiFiH
EURFTEEEE(GEIEEH D HE kD
MR EF 7 L8R o

As at 31 March R3H31H
2018 2017
Self- Self-
managed Concession  Franchised managed ~ Concession  Franchised
Region i) Shops Points Stores Total Shops Points Stores Total
HEE  RIHEY BICEER At BEE  BIHER BIREER @5t
The PRC i
Beijing IR 3 62 — 65 5 83 3 91
Eastern China R - 57 - 57 - 74 2 76
Southern China Excye 1 29 - 30 1 44 — 45
Western China £ - 3 - 33 - 51 6 57
Central China Ed - 49 - 49 — 59 25 84
Northern China Bl - 40 1 # — 47 24 71
Sub-total gt 4 270 1 275 6 358 60 424
Hong Kong Bk 21 2 - 23 32 1 - 33
Taiwan aE — 8 - 8 — 9 — 9
Total @it 25 280 1 306 38 368 60 466
Annual Report 2017/2018
05 2017/2018 FF 5




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

Subsequent to the completion of the acquisition of China
Consume Financial Holdings Company Limited (“CCF”), the Group
is engaged in the e-Commerce and e-Payment business. CCF
obtained the authorization from UnionPay International to provide
the services for payment clearance of transactions between the
merchants and UnionPay. During the Year, CCF commences
its e-Commerce and e-Payment business containing online and
offline payment services. At present, CCF focuses on online and
offline payment services of UnionPay Online Payment and the
Point of Sale terminals respectively. The Group intended to sell
e-Commerce and e-Payment business and planned to cooperate
with investors with technical expertise and abundant resources
to integrate their edges and resources, thereby strengthening its
position in the e-Commerce and e-Payment industry.

During the Year, the Group obtained licences to carry out Type 1
(dealing in securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, and
also holds a Money Lenders Licence under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the
Year, the Group commenced to carry out its financial services
business in Hong Kong offering the diversified financial services
including securities brokerage services and money lending to
institutional and retail clients.

MARKET REVIEW

Stock market has been in wild swings amid mounting trade tension
between the PRC and the U.S., despite that the real trade war has
not been triggered. Benefited from the increasing national income
which drove up purchasing power, the domestic consumption
in the PRC has been boosted, with no influence from the trade
relationship. Although domestic demand has fueled the rapid
growth of the retail industry in the PRC, the young middle class
with strong purchasing power is considered as major consumers,
and online shopping is their major consumption pattern. Due to the
low entry cost, a large amount of competitors are being attracted
to participate in industry of online shopping. All these adverse
factors significantly undermined the profitability of the Group’s
physical stores and online stores. In addition, the rising operating
cost has adversely affected the performance of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded a decrease of 38.4% in its
consolidated revenue to approximately HK$346 million (2017:
HK$562 million). Revenue from the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan
markets decreased by 42.3%, 26% and 7% respectively. The
overall same store sales of the Group dropped by approximately
28.2% and the overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased
by 0.8 percentage points to 50.6%. The Group’s overall operating
expenses as a percentage of turnover increased by 11.2
percentage points. Loss attributable to the equity holders was
approximately HK$209 million (2017: HK$210 million). Loss per
share attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately
HK$29.14 cents (2017: HK$31.96 cents).

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 06

RPBEEESBERERQF(TCCF]) 2 WiE
FETKE  AEBREEFEBELEFNE
% o CCF LRI BIFR ARSI 4% - M EL 7l = ELdR B
ZEZRPRHEE NN R - RAFE - CCF
FREAEFEEMRETFINER  EPEEKL
K% NS BR#S o B AT - CCF 2 Bl B E A SR B
BRSUT R E B IR 2 AR £ MR T 7 -
AEBMAEBHEE TN RETRABOERS © &1
HEABEXRMENNEBEERNKREEAR
fE BETEBERES ZEEAETRKLE
FXATTRAMAL -

RAFE  AEBEISAETES PSR
TE1HEFRG)NRFIR(BAEER)XRE
B ZRR - WRBBEEENIE 163 BB A K
PIVET ZREABRR RAFEAR > NEBER
ERBBETESRREEY  SRBMRTER
FRHZ TS BMRE - BIEEH L2 RS MK

f& o

™ 15 B B8

TEEHTAEESHHB LRINESR - BARSIBE
FTEZ8 EHELSHEREE - HHEME - K
EBERMWAEZN - HIORERED - MEBA
FHE 2T XEZEERE -BETEAT
TERTEX  BRABEBAN-HUFEPERE
RE - HAEERATERELEY gL
ZERAR/AFIRAREIE - W KEHFEAIT
ERETMER  BEITEASEERE PR
JEEUA o I EEER AR E LR E AR ERE
EREFE -

e E)-

RAFEE  KNEEHBLEAS WML 38.4% 2
41346 B EHETT(20174F : 562 B BHET) ° K B
FE - BERBEMS 2 WED R T 42.3%
26% NT7% - REBZEER/EHE THYH
28.2% @ MASE 2 BEBEFNEA TEK0.8EF
DEE50.6%  NEBZ BEKGEERGLEERE
MR EAI2EE DR - BRI AEMGE
B A209BEET(2017E :210BEHBTT) °
BEEAABEEREEY A29.14F1L(2017
& 31.9681) -



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

The three geographical market segments, namely the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan accounted for 72%, 26% and 2% of the Group’s
total revenue respectively (2017: 78%, 21% and 1%).

Various measures on inventory management were taken during
the Year in order to clear excessive stocks and maintain a healthy
inventory level. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s inventory
balance (net) was HK$97 million, down 26.8% from HK$133
million as at 31 March 2017.

The PRC

During the Year, the revenue generated in the PRC was
approximately HK$251 million (2017: HK$434 million),
representing a decrease of 42.3% as compared to the previous
year. The operation in PRC incurred a loss of HK$54 million for
the Year (2017: HK$51 million).

Same store sales dropped by approximately 31.6% and operating
deficit to revenue ratio increased by 9.8 percentage points as
compared to last year.

Hong Kong

During the Year, the revenue generated in Hong Kong was
approximately HK$88 million (2017: HK$119 million), representing
a decrease of 26% as compared to the previous year. The
operating loss in Hong Kong decreased by HK$16 million,
representing an decrease of 42% as compared to last year. Same
store sales dropped by approximately 11% while operating deficit
to revenue ratio decreased by 6.7 percentage points to 24.5% as
compared to last year.

Taiwan

During the Year, the revenue generated in Taiwan was
approximately HK$7 million (2017: HK$8 million), representing a
decrease of 7% as compared to the last year. The operating loss
in Taiwan increased by HK$0.4 million, representing an increase
of 94.8% as compared to last year. Same store sales decreased
by approximately 2.5% while operating deficit to revenue ratio
raised by 5.7 percentage points to 10.9% as compared to last
year.

07

FE - BERAEZEEMS S hALEER
WD Rl A72% » 26% 2% (2017 FF : 78% -
21% K 1%) °

RAFE  AEERAZEFEEEEHR - WS
BRZFEWHFRTFTEKTE - R2018F3 A
1H AEEZEFELEBABITEER T 8
MR201743A31HZ133BEB L N#26.8% °

PE

RAFE  REFBRZKREHB251EEE T
(20174 1 434 BHEETL) REF T842.3% °
RAFE  PEZEEELEEMEGEET
(2017FE 51 EHEBBT) °

EERFLE - FEEE TEKL31.6%  MELE
BEWE 2 =R EFH9.81EH D2 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Position

The Group maintained a stable financial position throughout the
Year. It financed its operations with internal funding, issuing the
bonds and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$54 million (2017: HK$33 million) and outstanding
bank borrowing bearing a fixed interest rate of HK$5 million (2017:
HK$5 million) with a maturity of less than one year. The bank
loan was denominated in New Taiwan dollars. The Group had no
outstanding bank borrowing bearing a floating interest rate (2017:
HK$67 million) as at 31 March 2018. Current and non-current
convertible bonds were approximately HK$18 million and HK$137
million respectively. As at 31 March 2018, the current ratio stood
at 3.3 times (2017: 1.0 times) and the gearing ratio stood at 68.7%
(2017: 35.5%).

Subsequent to the completion of disposal of properties on 9
March 2018, the Group withdrew from the banking facilities (2017:
HK$112 million) and no charge on its assets. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had aggregate of approximately HK$6 million
of bank loans for trade financing and bank guarantees for rental
deposit (2017: HK$79 million). As at the date of this report, the
Group had no bank loans and bank guarantees.

During the Year, inventory turnover days increased to
approximately 245 days (2017: 238 days). As at 31 March 2018,
inventory amounted to approximately HK$97 million (2017:
HK$133 million).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
HK$16 million (2017: HK$10 million), comprising principally the
purchase of leasehold improvements, computer equipment and
computer software.

The Group believes that its current cash holding, cash flow from
operations and available banking facilities will be sufficient to fulfil
its working capital requirements and its financial position remains
sound for continuous operation and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Management

The Group operates principally in the PRC and Hong Kong and
its transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi or Hong
Kong dollars. The Group does not expect any significant foreign
currency risk and did not enter into any forward contract to hedge
its foreign exchange risk during the Year.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 08

Bt %5 1o R
g2 e

REFEAFE - NEBEZPHERARTIBR - K
SERNHES  BTEFRRTEEREHLE
RHEESD o

%mmisﬂmav$%52ﬁ$&ﬁ$%@
TEHH A54E&EBT(2017F : 33ES&EET) °
ﬂ%ﬁé—imiufﬁﬂz;ﬂa@méfﬁmﬁgﬁsﬁﬁﬁ
;%ﬁ(zowi S5EBEL) - BITERUFEK
sHE - 20183 A31H - $E@1ﬁﬁﬂaz
/?ibf'thETT1ﬁj§(2017$ B7TEBEBIL) ° i
HRIERBAIBRES DAL 18EE BTN 137
BEHBTe M2018F3A31H " mEtk X A
3.3&(2017F :1.0(8) MEEABBERL XA A
68.7% (2017 £ : 35.5%) °

MR2018F3 9B HEWERE » NEEHHE
RITRE(2017F - 1HM2ABET) BT EUHSE
EVEFRD - 20183 A31H » AEE%E AR
TEEALANEEE T UEEFRMELHES
Be ZRITERROITE 798 8B L) - RA
WEHE  AEBEVEFITEERIBITER -

RAFEE FEREAH FAZ4245H (2017
F :238H) - N2018F3A31H  FELEIY
BEBIT(2017F : 133HEBIL) ©

BEXRX

RARFE $EIZ§Z!SE%§7’%16§%;E
@m7¢ 10888 7T) BEAEEE -
“““1%&@‘“%1#2%%?%%32

AEEREEBAAFRS KAKEXH R
TRENMABAZRITRE  HRAMEAEE
ZEBETHE H$%Zﬂ7ﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬂé’¢ﬁ%
- RAREHEZENBER A -

SNEERE

AEEFZRFBEILEEEE  RHFTEUAR
MRBETLEE RAEE $EIITﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ERERINERBS - IERT A RIAA LA
S ELANE @S o



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

Convertible Bonds

(a) On 24 June 2016, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with the subscriber in relation to the Company
issued the convertible bonds to subscriber in principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 (“First Bonds”). Pursuant to
which the First Bonds will bear coupon interest at the rate
of 6% per annum and may be converted into 16,574,585
new Shares at a conversion price of HK$1.81 per share
and due 2020. The First Bonds was issued on 5 July 2016.
The net proceeds from the First Bonds were approximately
HK$28,900,000 and had been utilised during the period from

receiving the proceeds to 31 March 2018 as follows:

(a)

RRES

R2016F6 H24H » KRR ERE AR
VREWME RBFEBEAREBITASH
/£ 30,000,0008 7T 2 AJ AR & 5 ([ 55 — it
BH D TREA B B—HEHFWH
FRERECRL  AIRERETHRENG
1.81/8 L4 516,574,585 L ¥ A% 15 » I
R20204F | Hf - & —#LE FH 02016 F 7
AS5BHET- F—HEHFZMBRAEFRE
49/ 28,900,00078 70 © R A UEIFTIS RIE
F£2018F 3 A31 HZHMEBRUTHRE
A :

1. Interest payment of the First Bonds IRHE-HESZFE HK$900,000& 7T
2. Payment of salary and rental expenses for the S E R EEER B XS

operation of the existing businesses of the Group  Z#H 4 NS H HK$28,000,000 % 7T

Total net proceeds utilised B ATERIEFRE 85 HK$28,900,000 % 7T

As at 31 March 2018, the net proceeds of the First Bonds
has been fully utilised.

Pursuant to the terms of the First Bonds, which contain
specific obligation imposed on Mr. Zhu Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”),
an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhu is required
(i) in his personal capacity or through any entity or company
controlled by him, to hold at least 50% of the issued share
capital of the Company; and (ii) to remain as an executive
Director. Any non-compliance with the aforesaid obligation
will constitute an event of default and upon the bondholder
giving a notice to the Company, the bonds will immediately
become due and payable in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the First Bonds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

(b) On 8 August 2016, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the subscriber in relation to
the Company issued the convertible bonds to subscriber in
principal amount of HK$150,000,000 (“Second Bonds”).
Pursuant to which the Second Bonds will bear coupon
interest at the rate of 10.5% per annum and may be
converted into 81,300,813 new Shares at a conversion price
of HK$1.845 per share and due 2019. The Second Bonds
was issued on 24 August 2016. The net proceeds from the
Second Bonds were approximately HK$146,900,000 and had
been utilised during the period from receiving the proceeds
to 31 March 2018 as follows:

1.  Development of “One Belt, One Road” related
businesses

2. Acquisition of the equity interests of design
management related enterprise

3. Interest payment of the First Bonds
and Second Bonds

BRAMB —H %K
WA BT B IR 2 It

SNE—HEFR
F_HEFZFE

(b) 7201668 H8H AR A HERE AL
REWE NRBBEARREITASEA
150,000,000/8 70 2 AJ IR E ([ 58 —#HL &
HDTREAN B F-HEFNET
FIEA05BZEE ~ AIREBRESTRE NG
1.845%8 JT # ¥ 481,300,813 i 371 I 19 »
WH 2019 FEIHY - 55 —HEE5MK 20164 8
A24B%IT - EHMEH 2B HIAFHE
#9/4146,900,000 87T - RIAUE|FTIS 5RIE
Z£2018F 3 A31 HZHME AT H6E
A :

HK$104,100,000 % 7T
HK$3,100,000 /& 7T

HK$20,756,000 % 7T

Total net proceeds utilised

EEAMERIAFE B

HK$127,956,000 % 7T

As at 31 March 2018, the balance of the net proceeds was
approximately HK$18,944,000 of the Second Bonds was
deposited with the Bank in Hong Kong and will be used for
the intended uses as set out in the announcement dated 8
August 2016.

Corporate Bond

The Company entered into a subscription agreement with an
investor on 5 May 2017 (“Subscription Agreement”) in relation
to the Company issue the bonds to the investor for subscribing
in principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of 12%
per annum for the first year and 13% per annum for the second
year and due 2019 (“Bonds”). The Bonds was issued on 8 May
2017. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, which contains a
specific performance obligation imposed on Mr. Zhu, that during
the term of the Bonds, Mr. Zhu together with parties acting in
concert with him, should own directly or indirectly more than 50%
of the voting shares of the Company. Any breach of the aforesaid
specific performance obligation may constitute a breach under the
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the investor is entitled
to redeem the Bonds immediately in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Bonds.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no pledge of assets. (2017:
HK$119 million).

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities or off-balance sheet obligations (2017: Nil).

GROUP STRUCTURE

During the Year, there was no material change in the corporate
structure of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 1,169 employees
(2017: 1,622 employees) and the total staff cost for the Year was
HK$156 million (2017: HK$207 million), representing 45% of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees, including mandatory retirement funds,
insurance, medical coverage and purchase discounts. In addition,
incentive share options and performance-based discretionary
bonus on an annual basis may be granted to employees subject to
the Group’s and individual performance. The Group also provides
regular trainings and workshops to its frontline and back office
staff on sales techniques, product knowledge and team building.

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 17 June 2017, the Company entered into the preliminary
agreement with the vendor, a company incorporated in ltaly
(“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Company will acquire the
properties located at Milan, Italy from the Vendor (“Properties”) for
a purchase price of Euro 34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$297,160,000) (“Acquisition”). The Vendor and the Company
will further enter into the notarial deed of purchase, which is within
six months after completion of the construction of the Properties.
The construction of the Properties commenced in June 2017 and
the Properties are currently under construction and completed
around 50% of overall project and the construction is expected to
be completed on schedule in June 2019. The Acquisition presents
an opportunity for the Group to gain exposure in one of the most
fashionable cities, to enhance brand recognition and image.
The Group intends to lease out part of the properties to set up
a lifestyle flagship store that offers entertainment, shopping and
catering enjoyment in Milan, Italy. The Acquisition will also enable
the Group to further explore the e-Payment business in Milan. The
Group intends to install point of sale terminals (“POS”) with the
potential merchants for the commercial units of the Properties, and
income can be generated from the fee charged based on the total
transaction amounts consumed through those POS. Besides, the
Acquisition represents an attractive investment opportunity for the
Group. As the Group intends to lease out the remaining part of the
Properties, it is expected that the steady source of rental income
generated from the Properties will strengthen the Group’s income
base.
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The Vendor is beneficially owned as to 70% by Ms. CAl Jiaying,
an executive Director, and hence the Vendor is a connected
person of the Company. The Acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction on the part of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios set out in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
Acquisition are more than 25% but less than 100%, the Acquisition
also constitutes a major transaction on the part of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is therefore subject
to the reporting, announcement and independent shareholder’s
approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
Details of the Acquisition are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 June 2017 and the circular dated 31 October
2017. An ordinary resolution was passed by shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting on 27 November 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 6 February 2018, Trunari Enterprises Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Vendor”) entered into
four sets formal agreements with four purchasers, all are the third
parties independent of the Company and its connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules), in relation to the Vendor sell
four properties to four purchasers in the aggregate consideration
of HK$150,000,000 (“Disposals”). Pursuant to (1) the first formal
agreement, the Vendor sell the first property situated at Units
1 to 20 on 7th Floor Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing
Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong to the first purchaser
at a consideration of HK$128,000,000; (2) the second formal
agreement, the Vendor sell the second property situated at Units
09 on 6th Floor Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong to the second purchaser at
a consideration of HK$9,500,000; (3) the third formal agreement,
the Vendor sell the third property situated at Units 13 on 6th Floor
Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong to the third purchaser at a consideration of
HK$9,500,000; and (4) the fourth formal agreement, the Vendor
sell the fourth property to the fourth purchaser. The fourth property
is car parking space L16 on basement situated at Hope Sea
Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$3,000,000. The Board
expected that the net proceeds will be used for the repayment
of mortgage loan secured by the Properties and the remaining
balance as general working capital of the Group. Details of the
Disposals are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
7 February 2018. The Disposals was completed on 9 March 2018.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 12

BEHARITEERERB L IESHAT70% - WE
HARNARZEEANL - WEEBEEK ETHRA
FUUAETETARRZBERS - AR ETHRA
F14.07 6B ABNESEE —HXEAER
BOLLEIBIE25%EEMN100% @+ WEEBEINE
M ETRAUF14EBTARFCEERS + Bk
AETEMARAFEI14EE N 2BR - AERBL
REAERT - BEANBEEEFBEHIRNERT
BHIA2017F6 A17H 2 AEMHEA2017F
10H31 B2k - ZIBEEBABREN2017F
11 27 HZRERIFRIARE FERF BB -

ERBWBERHESHE

R2018F2H6H  ARAIzE2EMBE A A=
Rt ARAR(EFDHENREFHAES
YRARBIREBEAL(EER EMARA) 2
B=F)AINAMER G NEAEHER MM
HEHHENEYSE - 2R E/5150,000,000 %
T(THEERE]) - RBREMNE—HEXHBHE &
FRE-—HBERFHEMREBSNENEERES
26 EF LEROLTE1IE209 B 25— 18
¥ % - K {8 A128,000,0007 7T ¢ (2) & — 7 IE
AN BFMFE_RBEAHELREENEN
B E o6 B EF LER L6095 B v
F-EWE - K{B49,500,0008 7T ()FE=H
FRXpE EHFRAEZRBEHFHEMREBNE
N BREEF2eRE F LEPL6E135EN
ZHEZIEWME - KEB9,500,000%8 T i K& (4)
FUMNERNHZE  BHFRFENBEHHEFENE
Y - FNIEMERMRE B NENEEREY
6B AFLEFRLMEZLIOEEMN  REA
3,000,000/87C - EE 2 BHME NI FEEA
TEBEZEMERRIZBENR - MABTERHE
REBZz —REEES - ARLEETHEFESH
RARRIBHA2018F 2 A7THZAE - HES
JHEMR2018F 3 H9HFEM °



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

POSSIBLE SALE OF THE COMPANY’S SHARES BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 29 October 2017, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”), an executive
Director and chairman of the Board and is interested in
513,300,002 shares of the Company, representing approximately
71.67% of the entire issued share capital of the Company had
entered into the non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
(“MOU”) with an independent third party (“Potential Purchaser”),
regarding the possible sale of the Company’s shares which
may be sold by Mr. Zhu to the Potential Purchaser (“Possible
Sale”). Mr. Zhu and the Potential Purchaser also entered into six
extension letters in relation to the date of entering into the sale
and purchase agreement was extended to on or before 30 June
2018. As the Potential Purchaser and Mr. Zhu failed to enter into
the sale and purchase agreement on or before 30 June 2018, the
MOU has terminated as at 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks,
capital risks and financial risks that may have different levels of
impact on the Group’s financial performance, operations, business
as well as future prospects. The financial risk and capital risk
are set out in the consolidated financial statements. Besides,
the following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

(i) Increase in rental and concession fees;

(i) Reliance on key management personnel;

(iii) Misjudgement of fashion trends or changes in consumers’
demand or failure to respond to such changes in a timely
manner;

(iv) Competition in footwear market in the PRC and Hong Kong;
and

(v) Economic downturn in the PRC and Hong Kong.

OUTLOOK

While certain uncertainties of world economies still persist in 2018,
the Group is cautious about the overall business and will actively
adopt various reform measures to overcome the challenges in
2018. In the coming year, the Group will seize opportunities
to continuously explore business opportunities for sound
development of the Group’s business.
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Amid escalating staff costs and shop rents, the Group will
continue to restructure the sales network throughout the PRC.
During the period, to manage the expansion of shops discreetly
with resources focusing on first-tier cities with strong purchasing
power, the Group has reduced the retail points in the PRC from
424 stores in the same period last year to 275 stores, thereby
enhancing management efficiency and attaining effective use of
resources. To contain the pressure from inventories and enhance
its cashflows, the Group will take preemptive initiatives to expand
the sales channels. For example, it will set up pop-up outlets
and step up the efforts in developing its wholesales business.
The Board expects that such measures in place will maintain the
steady development of retailing business segments.

Taking a series of UnionPay payment methods as basis, the Group
plans to expand its foreign business and intend to promote the
businesses related to UnionPay Online Payment, Apple Pay, Point
of Sale in various regions including Hong Kong, Japan, the United
Kingdom, Korea, France and ltaly. The Group has commenced
certain e-Payment businesses in Hong Kong, and will continue
to consider Hong Kong as the target city of its main development
in 2018, whereas Japan and the United Kingdom, which have a
business connection with us, will be the secondary target cities
accordingly.

The report of the 19th CPC National Congress proposed to
deepen the institutional reform in the financial sector on various
fronts, with an aim to provide considerable opportunities for
Hong Kong’s economic and financial development. With the PRC
backing, the Group is optimistic about the financial business in
the coming year. During the period, the Group began to engage
in securities transaction business and provision of securities
brokerage services for individuals and corporate customers. The
Group plans to provide welcome offers upon account opening
to attract new customers. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
cultivate talents and enhance its services, providing our customers
with unsurpassed services.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my heartfelt appreciation to my fellow board members and all staff
members for their outstanding contributions to the Group over
the past year, and also to express my sincere gratitude to the
shareholders and stakeholders for their trust and support.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing and maintaining good
corporate governance practices within the Group to have better
transparency and protection of shareholders’ interest in general.
We believe that a well-balanced corporate governance structure
will definitely enable better management of its business risks and
thereby ensure the Group is operated in the best interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report”
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). These functions included:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, there are three board committees under the
Board, namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
which have been posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. These committees report directly to the Board
on their works and make recommendations on matter where
appropriate.

Save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all

applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2018 (“Year”).
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Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Throughout
the Year, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”) is the Chairman of the
Board and is responsible for providing leadership and ensuring
effective running of the Board. The duties of the chief executive
are undertaken and performed by the Chairman of the Board, thus
Mr. Zhu also responsible for the Group’s day-to-day operations
and implementation of the Group’s strategies and is assisted by
a management team, comprising executive Directors, general
managers and department heads of the Group, with authority and
responsibility for developing and exercising both operational and
non-operational duties. Despite a part of responsibility of chief
executive is vested in Mr. Zhu, in which all major decisions are
made in consultation with the other Board members and the senior
management of the Company. The Board believes that there is
sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains
a strong management position of the Company. As such, this was
in deviation from A.2.1 of CG Code.

According to Rule 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
code provision A.5.1 of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange, the Board is required
at least three independent non-executive Directors, the audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”) must comprise
a minimum of three members and both of the remuneration
committee of the Board (“Remuneration Committee”) and
nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination Committee”)
should comprises a majority of independent non-executive
Directors. Following the resignation of Dr. HE Chengying as the
independent non-executive Director and ceased to the member
of both Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and
ceased to the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect
from 1 April 2017, the Board has two independent non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee comprises only two members and
both of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
comprises the chairman of the Board and one independent non-
executive Director. This was in deviation from Rules 3.10(1), 3.21
and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision A.5.1 of CG
Code.

However, following the appointment of Mr. LEUNG Man Ho as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee with effect from 19 June 2017, the Company has
three independent non-executive Directors, the Audit Committee
comprises three members and both of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee comprises a majority
of independent non-executive Directors in compliance with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and code provision A.5.1 of CG Code.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s directions,
strategies and policies, approval of annual budgets and
business plans, overseeing and reviewing the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems, formulating the
corporate governance policy and supervising a management team
comprising executive Directors, general managers and department
heads of the Group. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters and material transactions of the Group.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (“INED”),
in compliance with the minimum number of INEDs required under
Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rule. Details of the Board composition
are as follow:

Board of Directors

Executive Director Membership of Board Committee(s)

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun Member of Remuneration Committee
(Chairman) Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. KANG Jianming —

Ms. CAl Jiaying —

Mr. YIN Wansun —

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong Chairman of Audit Committee
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Nomination Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho

The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors
and INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the Group. The INEDs provide the Group with diversified
expertise and experience. Their views and participation bring
independent judgment and advice on issues relating to the Group’s
strategies, performances, conflicts of interests of all shareholders
are taken into account. The number of INEDs has been no less
than one-third of the number of the Board members and at least
one of whom possesses the appropriate professional accounting
qualification and related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Director

In accordance with the Company’s Article of Association
(“Articles”), the Board shall have the power from time to time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each
AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation and all Directors are subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

The Chairman and Chief Executive

The CG Code provides that the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive should be separate and performed by different
individuals. During the Year and up to the date of this Report,
as explained in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Practices” on page 16 of this report, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun assumed
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive of the Company
simultaneously.

Independent Non-executive Director

All INEDs are appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation. No INED has served the Company for more
than 9 years. Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all INEDs are independent.

Company Secretary

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the senior
management. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and
all applicable laws are followed. During the Year, the company
secretary has complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Training and Professional Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The training records for the Year had
been provided to the company secretary by all Directors of the
Company. A summary of trainings received by the Directors for the
Year is shown as below:

BIIREXRBR

ARRBBEREST2EBBEIXER  UER
ERBRREFZNBNE  BRRENESSHE
HABEREBEZER - AR EREZCARF
WERHAFE 2B -  AFEEERRIIE
I BEFIRAT -

Type of training

Name of Directors BEENF EHER
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman) KEFELE(EE) A&B
Mr. KANG Jianming R L& B
Ms. CAl Jiaying BEEBLT A&B
Mr. YIN Wansun BRBs#R & A&B
Ms. ZHAO Hong IR+ B
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing JEE B A&B
Mr. LEUNG Man Ho RN FEHE A&B

Notes:
A: attending briefing sessions and/or seminars

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been
arranged for the Directors and officers of the Company for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage of directors’ and officers’ liability is reviewed
on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis of at least four times a year to discuss the Group’s business
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results. The Board members are served with notices of
at least 14 days and provided with all agendas and adequate
information for their review at least 3 days prior to the meetings.
After the Board meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by the company secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. During the
Year, four Board meetings were held.
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All Directors are adequately briefed on updates on amendments
to or latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws, rules and regulations concerning their obligations as
Directors and good corporate governance practices. They were
also provided with the Group’s monthly management updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects to enable
the Board and each Director to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three members, all
INEDs, namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. CHAU Wai Hing
and Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017). During the
Year, Dr. HE Chengying (“Dr. He”) resigned as INED and ceased
as a member of the Audit Committee effective from 1 April 2017
and Mr. LEUNG Man Ho was appointed by the Board as INED
and as a member of Audit Committee effective from 19 June 2017
in replacement of Dr. He. No member of the Audit Committee
was a former partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm.
The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications in accountancy and experience in
financial matters.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Group’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
procedures, to review the Group’s financial information, to oversee
relationship with the Group’s external auditors and make relevant
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee held
two meetings during the Year and its works performed include
reviewing the adopted accounting principles and practices, the
annual and interim consolidated financial results and reports,
reviewing external auditors’ audit plan, terms of engagement and
recommended auditors’ fees for the Board’s approval, reviewing
the management letters and reports issued by the external
auditors and reviewing the internal audit review reports for
assessing effectiveness of internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises four members,
the majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are
INEDs, namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman) (appointed on
16 June 2017), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Mr. CHAU Wai Hing and Mr.
LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017). During the Year,
Dr. He resigned as INED and ceased as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee effective from 1 April 2017. In replacement
of Dr. He, the Board appointed Ms. ZHAO Hong as the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee effective from 16 June 2017 and
also appointed Mr. LEUNG Man Ho as INED and as a member of
Nomination Committee effective from 19 June 2017.
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The main duties of the Nomination Commitiee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies, to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board on selection of individuals
for directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession plan for Directors,
in particular the Chairman and chief executive officer. The
Nomination Committee was provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in June 2013 which
set out the approach to diversity on the Board. The Board shall
consider various aspects in achieving diversity of Board members,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race and gender. The Nomination Committee will
monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and
review the policy as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year
and its works performed includes reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; approving the appointment of an
Executive Director; and assessing independence of the INEDs.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
the majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
INEDs, namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun
and Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017). During
the Year, Dr. He resigned as INED and ceased as a member
of Remuneration Committee effective from 1 April 2017 and
Mr. LEUNG Man Ho was appointed by the Board as INED and as
a member of the Remuneration Committee effective from 19 June
2017 in replacement of Dr. He.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing remuneration policy, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, to make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of INEDs and to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee was provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year
and discussed the remuneration package for certain Directors and
senior management as well as other remuneration-related matters.

DIRECTOR’S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting,
Audit Committee Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting,
Remuneration Committee Meeting and shareholder’s meeting
during the Year are set out below:

RAFE  FHEESERT—RgE  Liw
ETEFEMSREEABZHFMGTE  ULEM
HEMEREZEH o

EERNERIHFELR

TR AFESESNEFE SR FZEEB
2RF RAZBEER FHZREeemLEK
RAGZHFEER

Attendance/Number of meetings held
for the year ended 31 March 2018

BZ201853 A3 HLFEME /B v854E

Audit Nomination  Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee 2017
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM/EGM
20176
BRAEXE/
EZgeE ENZEe8E RRZESEE FMZEgeE  RREAAS
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman of the Board REFRE(EEFELREL

and Member of the Remuneration and REBRIEEZESHE)

Nomination Committees) 4/4 — 1 1 212
Mr. KANG Jianming REBLE 3/4 - - — 2/2
Ms. CAl Jiaying SEELT 3/4 - - — 2/2
Mr. YIN Wansun REALE 4/4 - - — 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman of Audit, BELL(ER  FHREE

Remuneration and Nomination ZE21E)

Committees) 4/4 2/2 1 1 212
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing (Member of the Audit ~ EEEEL

and Nomination Committees) (BERIEEZAEHE) 4/4 2/2 17 = 202
Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (Member of Audit, RS (B - HHRIE

Remuneration and Nomination £Z5205)

Committees) 4/4 2/2 1 1 212
DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES EEREHAEEETZRESRS

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries with all Directors, they have confirmed their compliance
with the Model Code throughout the Year. On June 2013, the
Company was adopted written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of
the dealings in the Company’s securities.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by the shareholders of the Company in general
meetings. During the Year, PricewaterhouseCoopers was retired
as external auditor at the AGM and the Group appointed BDO
Limited as external auditor to perform the following services and
their respective fees charged are set out as follows:

SMNEE X BUED

BERZEQRATRINERBRMZRE  EF X
ELER WARBSEFE@ZHARARARR
RERAE EEHRERIERRE - RAFE -
BABKBEMEBANRRAFAEG LRE
RINBZBED MAKBCERERBLEERS
AHENEH AR AR RINEZIED - HETT TS
AR5 R AR B AEFINT

Type of Services i %% il 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Audit services EZIRES 1,650 2,550
Non-audit services IEFTIZ AR TS 44 91
Total #ct 1,694 2,641

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays
a major role in providing objective assurance to the Board that a
sound and effective risk management and internal control system
is in place and operated by the management. The head of the
internal audit department directly reports to the Audit Committee
on risk management and audit matters. The annual audit works
plan covered the business activities and process of the Group’s
core operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be
performed on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit
Committee and the management from time to time.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, while the management
ensures the sufficient and effective operational controls over
the key business process are properly implemented with regular
review and update. Review the internal controls of the Group
mainly covering financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The risk management
and internal control system are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The implementation of the Group’s risk management evaluation
was assisted by the internal audit department so that the Group
could ensure new and emerging risk relevant to the Group’s
operation are promptly identified by management, assess the
adequacy of action plans to manage these risks and monitor
and evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. The Audit
Committee reviews regularly the Group’s risk management
systems.
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Through the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. To maintain a sound and effective system of internal
control and safeguard our shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets at all times, the Group has an independent audit
team to review and monitor all critical aspects of the Group’s
activities and its internal control. During the Year, the Board had
reviewed the findings of the internal control review and evaluation
of risk level of the Group could take and effectiveness of risk
management measures performed by the internal auditors and
external auditors together with the Audit Committee and, after
discussion with the management and external auditors, was
satisfied that the Group’s internal control system and assessment
of risk management was sound and adequate for the Year. The
Board would continue to review and improve the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, taking into account the
prevailing regulatory requirements, business development needs
and the interests of shareholders.

The Board also reviews annually the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the channels by which information is communicated
with its shareholders. The Company’s corporate communications
includes among other things, announcements, financial reports,
circulars and other corporate communications which are
disseminated through its website at www.vestategroup.com
and the website of the Stock Exchange in compliance with the
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Company’s shareholders. All Directors will make
an effort to attend general meetings. The chairman of the
AGM proposes separate resolution for each issue and invites
presence of chairman of each of the Board Committees for
answering questions at the AGM. External auditor also attends
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of audit, the
preparation and content of auditors’ report and the confirmation
of auditor’s independence. The notice of AGM and related papers
are distributed to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM. At the AGM, the Chairman ensures that detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are explained.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HEREBHE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “ESG report”) issued by Vestate Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “We”). This report mainly includes the performance
of our offices, warehouses and stores at our main operating
points in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) , Hong
Kong and Taiwan in respect of environmental protection, social
responsibilities and corporate governance. We will also review
on such relevant performance for our further improvement in the
future.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

In addition to the continuous assessment of the scope of the
Group’s existing footwear sales business in the report of the Year,
the Group has also assessed the newer businesses as appropriate
to gradually increase the scope of disclosures based on their
impact on the Group’s businesses.

Unless otherwise stated, the environmental data only cover the
footwear sales business of the Group in Hong Kong and PRC. The
data on offices and main operating points in Taiwan are excluded
due to insignificant impact on the environment.

REPORTING PERIOD

The reporting period covers 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the
“Year”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Different stakeholders are influential on the Group. However, we
believe that resources should be deployed on the information
disclosures for our most significant stakeholders, such as
employees and suppliers, and extend to other stakeholders. We
are open-minded to encourage our stakeholders to express their
opinions through various channels.

ENVIRONMENT
Environmental Protection

The Group has formulated a series of management objectives
for environment and natural resources protection conforming to
our direction in sustainable development and operation. To make
reasonable use of various energy, resources and materials, the
Group regularly collects greenhouse gases emission data from
certain operating facilities during its operation with reference
to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Information analysis provides us with clear
directions to improve our daily operations, which facilitates the
implementation of measures, the gradual enhancement of resource
efficiencies and the contribution to environmental protection in the
future.
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Raise the awareness of environmental protection within the
Group and optimise the use of resources

To raise the awareness of environmental protection within the
Group and the responsible use of resources, information is shared
internally. Meanwhile, we have also introduced measures on
energy, water and paper conservation and the proper use of air-
conditioners. We have assigned employees to explore and collect
more information on environmental protection, pay close attention
to the relevant information updates and communicate such
information to all employees of the Group.

Incorporate environmental protection into the design and
renovation of our stores

The design and renovation of our stores features with waste
reduction in fusion with various factors such as energy
conservation and the use of reusable materials, which are also our
priority concerns.

Strengthen the management of performance indicator
measures

We strengthen statistics and data collection in relation to the
fuels, energy consumption and waste generated from offices,
warehouses and sales points during the course of business.
Through data processing and analysis, we can further create a
more suitable environmental protection policy.

The extensive footwear sales business network of the Group
covers a total of 306 sales points, 18 offices and 14 warehouses
in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan with 1,169 employees. We
believe that the increasing environmental protection awareness
of our employees can in turn improve the performance of the
Group as a whole and even inspire others to make their effort.
The following initiatives are widely promoted to our staff, such as
water conservation, turning-off of unnecessary lighting and air-
conditioning after work or during lunch breaks, as well as setting
sleeping mode management of computers. We also set up used
papers collection boxes, encourage our staff to use double-sided
printing, send documents through emails and review documents
online. Our staff is also advised not to use single-use paper cups
for daily use. Environmental protection tips in electronic forms
and related activities are provided for our staff to encourage their
participation. We also encourage our staff to share information on
environmental protection by keeping them in the shared file on
the central network of regional offices. In this way, green living
information can be shared among our staff to enhance their quality
of life and help to enhance environmental protection.
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We understand that the harm caused by the emission of pollutants
from vehicles and aircrafts to the environment should not be
neglected. However, it is inevitable to use vehicles to transport
our products between various sales points and warehouses in
the course of our operations, and our management needs to
travel by plane and other forms of transportation in managing
our business. The Group continuously monitors our use of
transportation and sets up appropriate measures to balance all
stakeholders’ interests. Our existing measures include gradually
upgrading our business vehicles to the European emission
standards, maintaining good maintenance and repair for vehicles
and adopting electronic means for business communications, such
as the use of video conference, or conference calls and other
electronic devices.

To ensure the sustainable development and better performance of
our policies and measures for balancing the interests of different
stakeholders, we have started to collect data on the emission of
greenhouse gases during our operation in the Year. The collected
data during the Year are as follows:
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During the Year, the petrol and diesel fuel consumption of the EEREAEFERARERERATHAMEBISR
Group from company vehicles was approximately 30,928 liters 30,928 A EXEMBHENR 7AW —F (L
and the carbon emission was approximately 74 tonnes CO2e E=
Scope 1: 2018
Direct emissions of (petrol/diesel 2018
greenhouse gases Coverage fuell/liters) (tonnes/C0O2e)
2018
HE1 2018 (g~
EEREREIHNK REEE (R $aaHA) | —EtREE)
— Retail business in the PRC
TEREEXRD
Emissions from vehicles — Hong Kong offices and warehouses
EHHR EEMAERAE 80,928 74
— Dongguan offices
REPWNE
(* Note: 1) (Kt 1)

During the Year, the purchased electricity of the Group was
approximately 3,026,483 kWh and carbon emission was
approximately 2,422 tonnes CO2e

SERRFENBE N %3,026,483 T R B -
EEmERENR 2422 M _FtREE

Scope 2:
Indirect emissions of
greenhouse gases from 2018
energy consumption Coverage 2018 (kWh) (tonnes/C0O2e)
2018
(mg,~
#HE2: REEREREBHER AEEE 2018 (TR &) “HILREE)
— Retail business in the PRC
TEREEEXD
— Hong Kong (offices/stores/warehouses)
Purchased electricity EAEMRE/TEH/ BE) 3.026.483 5 422
HNEE N — Guangzhou (offices/warehouses) 0eD :
BEMGRAE/BE)
— Dongguan (offices)
REMAE)

(* Note: 1)
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During the Year, the carbon emission generated from
outsourced transportation vehicles and staff business trips by
planes of the Group was approximately 103 tonnes CO2e

SERAFEANMERERRETHRFLR
BMEENBRERBAORI13AM _SILRER

Scope 3: 2018
Indirect emissions of greenhouse gases Coverage (tonnes/C0O2e)
2018
2iE3 (Wg,~
EEAEREHEN REEE “EtRER)
— Retail business in the PRC
Outsourced transportation vehicles FRESEED
N . 71
HNELIE B S — Dongguan offices
RERNE
— Retail business in the PRC
TEETERK
Staff business trips by planes — Hong Kong offices and warehouses 30
B B FRALRM N BEERBAEREE
— Dongguan offices
LN
Total
N 1
ot 03

(* Note: 1 & 2)

During our business operations, store improvement and renovation
are indispensable which could cause direct damages to the
environment. To mitigate the damages, we begin with the source.
In the context of our design concept, parts of the furniture are
designed for recycling, renewable materials are used whenever
possible and the energy-efficient lighting is more widely used in
our illumination system. Disposal of wastes from closed stores is
outsourced to subcontractors holding environmental protection
certificates for waste separation and disposal. From mid-2016
onwards, store design and tools manufacturing have been put into
centralised management, waste separation and disposal of wastes
has been carried out by subcontractors holding environmental
protection certificates in some regions, with an aim to continuously
promote such practice to each province and city.

Notes:

1. Carbon emission is calculated with reference to the Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs published by the Stock Exchange;
Greenhouse Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development (WBSCD) and the World Resources
Institute (WRI).

2. Emission data of business trips by air is calculated using the carbon
emission calculator of the International Civil Aviation Organization.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

In an era where intense competition abounds, we regard
intelligent, creative and dedicated staff as the Group’s most
valuable asset. We acknowledge good employment relationships
and a committed team are the keys to the Group’s efficient
operations.

We care about the communication with our staff, encourage our
staff at all levels to express their opinions through various staff
activities, such as meetings, suggestion boxes and websites. We
advocate a harmonious environment and organise occasional
and different types of meetings and outdoor activities to lift the
barriers between staff, creating a healthy and harmonious working
environment.

Employment

As of 31 March 2018, the Group employed 1,169 employees, of
which approximately 1,033 were based in the PRC, 114 in Hong
Kong and the remaining in Taiwan. We are in compliance with
the employment regulations of the regions where our business is
situated, details of which are set out below:

1. Labour wages, overtime pay and related benefits meet (or
exceed) the local minimum wage;

2. Leaves and statutory paid leaves comply with the local
government requirements;

3. Our employees are treated equally by the Group. The
employee’s social identity, such as ethnicity, race, nationality,
gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political factions
and marital status, will not affect his/her employment,
remuneration package and promotion;

4. Staff Code of Practice of the Group is formulated with
reference to the employment regulations of relevant regions
which comply with the standard requirements of the national
and local government.

Health and Safety

The Group values the health and safety of our staff. We consider
that health is essential for wealth and a bright future. Basic
medical benefits and a safe working environment are offered to
employees to reduce casualties and money loss arised during
work.
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In compliance with Fire Services Ordinances, we set up fire
escapes, emergency lightings and fire escape maps for emergency
escape. First-aid kits are in place at each work station. Guidance
and working guidelines regarding moving goods safely and the
use of trolleys are provided for staff subject to higher risk of
work-related injuries, such as warehouse staff. Our retail staff
are provided with occupational health guidance, which gives
instructions on the safe use of ladders, climbing ladders and
stocking shelves to avoid injuries.

Development and Training

In the fast-changing market with intense competition, we believe
that only by pursuing knowledge and innovation, remaining full
alert, leveraging on intelligence and creativity, and above all,
improving efficiencies of the management teams can we respond
to new challenges in this new era. Consequently, the Group’s
objective is to increase the capabilities of our staff at all levels.
To accommodate the occupational developments, we will continue
to establish a series of courses based on the needs to enhance
employees’ skills and encourage employees’ continuous learning.

We provide induction trainings for the new frontline staff. Such
trainings comprise introduction of the Company, rules of the
Company, occupational safety and the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance; fundamental store management, product knowledge,
sales techniques and customer services, all of which help new
staff fitting into our team as soon as possible.

The Group also supports self-improvement and encourages our
staff to fully utilise their expertise at work to enhance quality. We
continuously recommend our staff to attend suitable seminars or
courses selected by us.

Seeking high-caliber individuals and cultivating talents are the
Group’s key objectives. We will not give up to achieve these
objectives through store management training programmes or
other feasible means.

Excellent enterprises cannot survive without a united and
competitive team. Therefore, we encourage employees to actively
participate in the meetings and outdoor activities organised by the
Group, during which team spirit is built and past performances are
reviewed, so that effective strategies can be developed to face the
new challenges in a new era.

Labour Standards

The Group forbids the employment of child labour, involuntary or
forced labour in all business segments. At present, there is no
significant risk of child labour or forced labour discovered within
the Group. In the case of voluntary departure, employees are
free to terminate his/her employment, provided that reasonable
notification period is given as required by their labour contracts.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Optimised supply chain management and sound procurement
management are relatively important to the sustainable operations
of the Group.

In general, we emphasized on the product quality, service
quality and business stability of suppliers in the supply chain
management system, however relatively less focus was given on
suppliers’ performance on environmental protection and social
responsibilities. We will continuously enhance the attention of our
suppliers on their performance of corporate social responsibility.
The related personnel assess and establish a list of suppliers,
whom are contacted and communicated with by the related staff,
while encourage unqualified suppliers to emphasis on corporate
social responsibility and comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is of the view that product forms the core competitive
edge of an enterprise. Our quality inspection and assurance
process includes: (i) our leather materials are sent to National
Leather Products Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre for
assessment, (ii) our products are required to pass the National
Quality Inspection for Light Industry for Leather and Fur of
Footwear Products, (iii) our professional personnel perform on-
site random inspection for suppliers, provide defect reports for
substandard products identified during the production process,
offer improvement advice and request the supplier to implement
improvements or provide detailed improvement proposals, and (iv)
follow up such proposals and continuously supervise the supplier’s
performance.

We will continuously optimize our product procurement process as
the Company’s procurement model changes, and strengthen the
review of inspection documents to ensure that our products are
compliant with the relevant laws and regulations.

For new businesses such as securities brokerage, the related
operating personnel shall comply with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by
or Registered with the Securities and Futures Commission and
Trade Descriptions Ordinance, to ensure that all information
given is correct and not misleading, defamatory or fraudulent. In
addition, we have set up appropriate working standards and codes
to make sure that all employees clearly understand the operating
requirements.
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Customer Services
Data Privacy Policy

We comply with the laws and regulations in relation to personal
information and the protection of customers’ rights. We shall not
share, sell or lease any information provided by our customers in
order to protect their rights. The personal information collection
statement has been set out on our website.

Anti-corruption

The Group takes integrity, law-abiding and effective operation as
our business operations philosophy. We strongly believe that the
image of honesty, integrity and fairness is one of the important
assets of the Group. To this end, the Group expressively requires
all staff to devote great efforts to protect our reputation by keeping
fraud, disloyalty or corruption at bay. The Group regularly reminds
our staff to follow instruction and related guidance in performing
job duties. Meanwhile, our management has formulated a
whistleblowing policy and assigned the Audit Committee comprised
of Independent Non-executive Directors to receive and follow up
relevant cases.

The Company’s new businesses such as securities brokerage
business have been commenced in line with the development
approach of the Group. The Group does not tolerate corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraudulent and money-laundering activities. The
relevant companies make reference to the relevant regulations,
such as Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the United Nations
(Anti-Terrorism Measures) Ordinance and the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance, and
require employees to strictly abide by the relevant regulations and
guidelines.

Whistleblowing Channel

We have formulated a whistleblowing policy and all staff of the
Group was notified again in the Year.

COMMUNITY

As a responsible enterprise, we will continuously adopt appropriate
approaches to broaden the communities we serve and support the
employment of people from different backgrounds.

Community Investment

In addition to participating in community public welfare activities
as usual and providing various types of employment opportunity
at all times, the Group has also continued to provide multiple
short-term internship opportunities for vocational training
colleges’ students. Working experience and relevant expertise
can be provided to students through face-to-face interviews,
working experience, gains and losses at work and knowledge
can be exchanged to enrich the practical experience of students.
Moreover, we have been awarded the “Caring Company” logo by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for seven consecutive
years, attesting our effort in the promotion of caring for our
society. In the future, we will continuously invest various resources
in our community.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, aged 47, is the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Board. Mr. Zhu is the bother-in-law of Ms. Cai Jiaying, who is an
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Zhu is responsible for the
overall management and strategies planning for the business
development of the Group. He is currently the general manager
of Shanghai Sunrise Pension & Services Company Limited in
the PRC. He is a sole director of China Consume Elderly Care
Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Zhu is experienced in the industry of electronic commerce. He
joined the Group in February 2016.

Mr. KANG Jianming, aged 43, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Kang obtained a Master’'s Degree in Philosophy from
the Beijing Normal University. He also completed an Executive
MBA programme from Zhongshan University in the PRC and
the China UnionPay Senior Management Programme from
the Business and Administration Department of the Tsinghua
University in the PRC. Mr. Kang worked as an economist in the
Guangdong Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited from March 2005 to December 2006. Afterwards, he
worked as the business director of Guangzhou UnionPay Network
Payment Company Limited from October 2007 to September 2015.
Mr. Kang obtained the intermediate level qualification in Finance
and Economics conferred by the Ministry of Personnel of the
Government of the PRC (currently known as the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of the Government of the PRC) in
November 2002. In November 2014, Mr. Kang was appointed as a
member of the 3rd Committee of the Guangdong’s Association for
Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macao. He has extensive experience in the industry of e-Payment,
finance and economics. Mr. Kang joined the Group in February
2016.

Ms. CAI Jiaying, aged 37, is an executive Director of the Group.
Ms. Cai is the sister-in-law of Mr. Zhu Xiaojun, who is a Chairman
and an executive Director of the Group. Ms. Cai graduated from
the Shanghai Art & Design Academy with a Bachelor's Degree in
Fashion Design. Ms. Cai has extensive experience in the fashion
design industry and she also has years of experience in ladies’
fashion design, brand development as well as the management
and business operation. She is also the general manager of
Shanghai Anxin Insurance Agency Limited. Ms. Cai joined the
Group in April 2016.
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Mr. YIN Wansun, aged 56, is an executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Yin obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering from the
Dalian University of Technology (formerly known as A& T £f7)
in the PRC. He is currently the managing director of Shanghai
Fudi Industry Company Limited and is responsible for monitoring
the overall business operations. Mr. Yin has over 20 years of
experience in the corporate management field. He joined the
Group in May 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Hong, aged 48, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. She also serves as a chairman of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
Ms. Zhao also appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board effective from 16 June 2017. Ms. Zhao
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accounting from the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and a Master’'s Degree
of Business Administration from the China Europe International
Business School in the PRC. Ms. Zhao obtained the qualification
of Accountant specializing in Accounting (Corporate) conferred by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in May 1996. She is currently a
non-practicing member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is currently a finance director of EBT Digital
Communication Retail Group. Ms. Zhao has extensive experience
in the financial and accounting fields. She joined the Group in April
2016.

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing, aged 52, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr.
Chau obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Quantitative Analysis for
Business, Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting and
Master Degree in Finance from the City University of Hong Kong.
He also holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting from
the Southern Cross University in Australia. He is a fellow member
of the Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a fellow member
of the Institute of Financial Accountants, a chartered member
of the Chartered Institute for Securities and Investment and a
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Mr. Chau currently serves as the chairman, executive director, a
chairman of investment committee and a chairman of nomination
committee of Huge China Holdings Limited (listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange). From December 2008 to April 2015,
Mr. Chau was the chairman and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited (listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange).
Prior to joining UBA Investments Limited, he possesses over 18
years of experience in banking, finance and wealth management
and held senior positions at several international financial
institutions including Bank of America (Asia) Limited and Merrill
Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited. He joined the Group in February
2017.
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Mr. LEUNG Man Ho, aged 36, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group on 19 June 2017. He also
serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr. Leung
obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung currently serves as the
executive director of Investment Banking Department of Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited since 1 August 2017.
Mr. Leung was the senior vice president of Xinchen China Power
Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange)
from February 2014 to April 2017 and was principally responsible
for investor relations, capital markets and financial reporting
matters. Prior to joining Xichen China Power Holdings Limited, he
has extensive experience in the corporate finance and merger and
acquisition field and held senior positions at several famous US
and Chinese investment banks.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are retailing of footwear in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. During the Year, the Group commenced its
financial business in Hong Kong, including securities brokerage
services and money lending business. Subsequent to the
completion of the acquisition of China Consume Financial Holdings
Company Limited, the Group is engaged in the e-Commerce and
e-Payment business.

An analysis to the Group’s performance for the Year by segment
is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of the Company’s
and the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 are set out on pages
56 to 169 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended not to declare final dividend for the
Year (2017: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 61, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2017:
Nil).

DONATIONS
During the Year, the Group did not make charitable contributions
and other donations (2017: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 170 to 172 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the
Year.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital,
share options and convertible bonds during the Year are set out in
Note 27, 28 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP’S BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2018 are set out
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of
Board of Directors of the Company are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman)
Mr. KANG Jianming

Ms. CAl Jiaying

Mr. YIN Wansun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017)
Dr. HE Chengying (resigned on 1 April 2017)

Dr. HE Chengying resigned as independent non-executive Director
of the Company on the date as abovementioned. He confirmed
that he has no disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to
the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company.
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In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, not
less than one-third of the Directors for the time being should
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. KANG Jianming and Mr. YIN Wansun, the
executive Directors of the Company and Ms. ZHAO Hong, an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”).

Change of Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of Directors required to be disclosed in this report as
follows:

Ms. ZHAO Hong, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 16 June 2017.

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho, an independent non-executive Director
was appointed as the executive director of Investment Banking
Department of Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited
with effect from 1 August 2017.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The Directors’ fees and remuneration is disclosed in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors’ fees are subject
to shareholders’ approval at general meeting. The emoluments of
the Directors are determined by the Company’s board of directors
with reference to their duties, responsibilities, experience and
performance, the Company’s performance, the prevailing market
conditions and after considering the market emoluments for
directors of other listed companies.

Biographical Details of Directors

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on
pages 34 to 36 of this annual report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares (“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and/or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
and chief executive were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

ESRESTBRAEBRERSG HARORESE
RZREERKR

M2018F3 H31H » B FH LHAGHEN([#H
REBE®RG DEXVEFETRESDHANG A
RAIRBZA(BEREES MRS GHIZE G
X BEERESITBRASEGESRAEER 2 #
=mERE)  RIRESH REE GRS XV 35 352
BETHFE 2SR MARsr - SUREAESTRZAM
SARRNBRBRZA  ARRSEERERSITHA
BREEZHE ARANRQR R,/ SH A E
B(TEREHRBEKROEXVI) ZBH (K
71 - RN RESFBER 2ERLABEWT ¢

The Company b /N
Number of shares held
FrERN#E
Number of
underlying
shares held Approximate
under equity % of the
derivatives Company’s
(Note 2) total issued
RER AT share capital
Personal Family Corporate  IEfiHAEZ AL
Name of Director Class of shares interests interests interests  HERGHE Total BRTRA
BEpg KRG &R AR RiEER NRER (HiZ2) ax  BEIHN%
ZHU Xiaojun Ordinary shares — — 513,300,002 — 513,300,002 71.67%
REE LBk (Note 1)
(Hit1)
KANG Jianming Ordinary shares/share options — — — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%
EgedE LRk ERE
CAl Jiaying Ordinary shares/share options — - - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%
2EE Lak R
YIN Wansun Ordinary shares/share options — — — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%
Rk LRk EiE
ZHAO Hong Ordinary shares/share options = = = 500,000 500,000 0.07%
il LRk EiE

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 40



Report of Directors
EEEHEE

Notes:

1. Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”) has beneficial interest in 513,300,002
Shares in the Company representing approximately 71.67% of entire
issued share capital of the Company held by China Consume Elderly
Care Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
wholly owned by Mr. Zhu.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted or
transferred to such Directors upon the exercise of the options
granted to each of them under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 21 May 2007.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which the Directors and chief executive were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section headed “Long
Term Incentive Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable a Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares, or debentures, of the Company or other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company and its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she does not have any interest in any business
apart from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.
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LONG TERM INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme 2007

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 21 May
2007 (“Share Option Scheme 2007”) for the purpose of providing
incentives to eligible participants to contribute to the Company
and enabling the Company to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further
options granted under the Share Option Scheme 2007 (“Post-IPO
Share Options”) will be issued but any options then outstanding
will continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Post-IPO Share Options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being 600,000,000
Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Post-IPO Share Options and any other share
options granted and to be granted to each eligible person in any
12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant of the
Post-IPO Share Options (“Grant Date”) shall not exceed 1% of
the number of Shares in issue as at the Grant Date unless prior
approval of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting is
obtained.

The Post-IPO Share Options may be exercised during a period
as notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the
Grant Date and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year period.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified in the
letter of grant, there is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price of the Post-IPO Share Options shall be
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of: (a)
the nominal value of the Shares; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the Grant Date; and (c) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the Grant Date.

On 28 November 2016, the Post-IPO Share Options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 41,000,000 Shares at an exercise price of
HK$1.45 per Share were granted under the Share Option Scheme
2007. The closing price of the Shares on 28 November 2016 was
HK$1.45.
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The Post-IPO Share Options are granted in two tranches of: (A) a
total of 31,000,000 shares of options; and (B) a total of 10,000,000
shares of options shall vest in the grantees in accordance with the

timetable below:

BEAAHAEREHERE MHLEL - Ji%
(A)4 #£31,000,0000% F& A% ## : &(B):. #
10,000,000 &% i A% #E - IRIK A NI R R B T &
BA

Tranches Exercisable period Percentage of Options to vest

#R T8 HTEBZBREZBEDL

A 28 November 2017 — 27 November 2021 Up to 50% of the total number of options granted
2017411 A28 H — 2021611 A27H TEBBERBEREEZZ 50%
28 November 2018 — 27 November 2021 Up to 50% of the total number of options granted
2018411 A28 H — 2021411 A27H NRIBER BRI 50%

B 28 November 2017 — 27 November 2021 Up to 25% of the total number of options granted

2017911 A28 H — 2021411 827 H
28 November 2018 — 27 November 2021
20184 11 H28H — 2021 F 11 527 H
28 November 2019 — 27 November 2021
2019411 H28H — 202111 A 27 H
28 November 2020 — 27 November 2021
2020 11 A28 H — 2021411 A 27 H

TEBE R EREAR L 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
TEEBERBRERIZ 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
T BEXBREAS 2 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted

NBBEERERELEE Z 25%

Details of movements of the Post-IPO Share Options during the

Year are as follows:

RAEE  BRAREREBEREZ EHFEN
-

No. of the Post-IPO Share Options

BRAAEREBRENE

Balance

Balance as at

as at 31 March

1 April 2017 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2018

R2017 5 during during during during 20185

Name or category RRAZ 4R1H the Year the Year the Year the Year 3A31A

of grantee HEER 2R REAFERE RAFESTE REFERE#E REFEXX 2R
Directors Bz

KANG Jianming FREEEA 6,000,000 = = = = 6,000,000

CAl Jiaying £ E 6,000,000 — — — — 6,000,000

YIN Wansun Rk 6,000,000 = = = = 6,000,000

ZHAO Hong I 500,000 = = = = 500,000

HE Chengying BEEE 500,000 — — — 500,000 —
Employees ==

In aggregate At 22,000,000 = = = 1,000,000 21,000,000

Total @5t 41,000,000 — — — 1,500,000 39,500,000

During the Year, none of the Options was granted, exercised or RAFEE  HEBREERD - 1THETHE

cancelled and a total of 1,500,000 Post-IPO Share Options have
lapsed during the Year. Accordingly, the outstanding of the Post-
IPO Share Options was 39,500,000 as at 31 March 2018.
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Share Option Scheme 2017

The Share Option Scheme 2007 was terminated and a new share
option scheme was approved by the shareholders at the general
meeting held on 13 January 2017. Also, the new share option
scheme was adopted by the Company on the even date (“Share
Option Scheme 2017”).

The Share Option Scheme 2017 shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no
further options granted or to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme 2017 will be issued but any options then outstanding will
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme 2017 and any other option scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of the Shares in
issue as at the date of the approval of the Share Option Scheme
2017, being 646,190,000 Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options and any other share options granted and
to be granted to each eligible person in any 12-month period
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options (“Grant
Date”) shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue
as at the Grant Date unless prior approval of the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting is obtained.

The options may be exercised during the option period determined
and notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the
Grand Date but subject to the provisions for early termination of
the Share Option Scheme 2017. Unless otherwise determined by
the Board and specified in the letter of grant, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
2017 shall be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
but in any event will not be less than the highest of : (a) the
closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Grant
Date; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown
in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Grant Date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Share on the Grant Date.

During the Year, no share options were granted by the Company
and there were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company), had the following interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of substantial
shareholder Capacity

FERRERE 56

TERRAROREBRG 2 EERAR

MR2018F3A31H  MEZMAM  HIRIEF
EREEIEDIEXVEFE 2 R EI N AR AR
WEE - NIRBEESH RS KA 5 XV EB 5 336 &
BATHFEzERMATRS  UWTALQEIEARAR
RIZEFAmBITHRAE)RARARGD KAERER
M2 RKBTT

Approximate

% of the

Number and Company’s
nature of total issued
interests held share capital
FrfsrE s R NI £

HERME RIBEIHY%

China Consume Elderly Beneficial owner

513,300,002 71.67%

Care Holdings Limited  EzZEE A
(Note)
HEEEEEZIERER
NCINE D,
Note: Hiat -

China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, the registered owner of
513,300,002 Shares, was owned as to 100% (1 share) by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun,
an executive Director of the Company, in the capacity of beneficial owners
respectively.

All the interests disclosed above represents long positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2018, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.
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Report of Directors
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, all suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
9.4% of the Group’s total purchases and the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 40% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Our Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the total turnover for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers
or suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the transactions constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of which are set
out in section headed “Major and Connected Transaction” under
Management Discussion and Analysis on page 11 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 25 of this annual
report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of
this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Details of events after the date of statement of financial position
are set out in Note 42 to the consolidation financial statement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being
in force for the benefits of any of the directors of the Company
(whether made by the Company or otherwise) or an associated
company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the
environmental and social sustainable development of the regions
where it operates. The Group takes into account of environmental
protection issues in developing and designing the new products.
It uses materials which have passed relevant physical and safety
tests and complied with the environmental laws and regulations.
The Group concerns about the responsibilities of its suppliers on
environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan (“Regions”)
as well as the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in such Regions. During the year ended 31 March
2018, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business are set out in Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 7 of this report.
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AUDITOR

During the Year, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) retired as
auditors of the Company with effect from the conclusion of AGM
held on 29 September 2017. The Board and the audit committee
of the Board appointed BDO Limited as the new auditor of the
company following the retirement of PwC.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018 have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Xiaojun
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 June 2018

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 48

B ED

RAFE  BEFKBEMEHA(BERK
BREARQDGIZEA - BR2017F9 A29H
BOZERRAFAGHERBER EZCRES
EEREZEE LA B U EERSHMELA
RARIRNEEFAGEETEETARNT ZHEZH
Bl o

RAFEHE2018FE3 A1 HIFFEZHEHRK
EEHMBEBLGEERSIMESMAERARE
%o MEBRME  BEFAERTEERERERRE
BERE FERET -

REREF®

FrE
KREE

BB
201846 H22H



Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR R S

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
TEEE 1 +852 2218 8288 &

{8H : +852 2815 2239 FEEEHR11158
www.bdo.com.hk JKZHI254&

To the Shareholders of Vestate Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vestate
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 169, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw your attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group reported a net loss
of HK$209,383,000 and had net cash outflows from operating
activities of HK$96,172,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018.
These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Provision of inventories

Refer to note 21 of the consolidated financial statements and
accounting policies on note 3.12.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of inventories amounted
to approximately HK$97,010,000 which were carried at the lower
of cost or net realisable value. The Group consistently applies a
provisioning policy for slow moving inventories based on inventory
ageing and specific product lines. We focused on this area
because the estimation of provisioning ratios applied to different
aged inventory categories involved significant judgement based on
historical experience of selling products of similar nature through
various sales channels as well as expectation of future sales
under current market condition. These estimations are also subject
to change of market trends, customers taste and competitors’
actions.

Our response:

Our key audit procedures in related to the directors’ assessment
of the provision of inventories included:

J Examining the basis of the methodology with respect of
inventory provision and evaluating the outcome against
management’s estimation in prior years;

o Assessing the assumptions and estimations applied by
management for establishing the provisioning ratio applicable
to different aged inventory categories through comparing with
historical sales trends of products with similar conditions and
future sales plan;
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o Testing the accuracy of the inventory ageing report and
historical sales information used in establishing the
provisioning ratios to historical purchase and sales records
by sampling basis; and

. Recalculating the inventory provision using the ageing report
as at 31 March 2018 and the provisioning ratio developed by
management.

Valuation of disposal group of e-Commerce and e-Payment
business

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and
accounting policies on note 3.11.

The Group has planned to dispose the e-Commerce and
e-Payment business. As at 31 March 2018, the net assets value of
the disposal group of approximately HK$189,422,000.

Management has assessed the fair value less costs of disposal
by an income approach of the disposal group’s cash generating
unit. It based on cash flow projections from the financial budgets
covering a twenty five-year period. The preparation of cash flow
projections requires significant judgement with respect to the
assumptions underlying the projected cash flows, in particular on
the discount rate and future revenue growth.

Our response:

Our key audit procedures in relation to the director’s impairment
assessment included:

. Evaluating the process by which the management’s future
cash flow projections and impairment assessment was
prepared;

. Assessing the valuation methodology used and challenging
the reasonableness of the key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

. Assessing the reasonableness of cash flow projections by
comparison to historical performance and future outlook; and

. Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as

approved cash flow projections, and considering the
reasonableness thereof.
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Recoverability of loan receivables

Refer to note 24 in the consolidated financial statements and
accounting polices on note 3.10(ii).

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of loan receivables
amounted to approximately HK$130,873,000 which were
significant to the Group as of the year end and represented 17.8%
of total assets. In assessing the recoverability of loan receivables,
management exercised significant judgement to evaluate the
collectability of loan receivables from individual borrowers after
taking into account their creditworthiness and history in default
of payments. We focused on this area because of the judgement
involved and the significance of potential financial impact to the
consolidated financial statements.

Our key audit procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment
assessment included:

o Understanding the terms and condition on each individual
loans agreements including Group’s assessment on its
recoverability;

. Inspecting to the receipts payment against the terms and
condition of loans agreements;

. Obtaining the independent confirmations from borrowers;
. Reviewing the subsequent settlement of individual loans; and

. Assessing the financial ability of guarantor of the loan
receivables.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise ERB(EBETE H'J>>L‘/_% FFHAESR - &K
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism MERTHXEHE  RIFTEEIEZRER - HM
throughout the audit. We also: 7R

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ANl R A B EF Sk S5 AR T G B & B 75

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

J evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

J conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Alfred Lee

Practising Certificate no. P04960

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE20184F3H31 HILFE

(Restated)
(&E5)
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wizt FET FET
(note 7)
(H1at7)
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Revenue Wz 5 346,157 561,557
Cost of sales HEMA 6 (171,069) (272,996)
Gross profit EF 175,088 288,561
Selling and distribution costs HE &5 HR 6 (251,757) (877,530)
Administrative expenses THEA 6 (103,728) (136,116)
Other gains/(losses), net Hizs, (B18) - B8 8 30,552 (400)
Other income H A A 9 4,000 4,742
Operatingloss 1 mEBER (145,845)  (220,743)
Finance income s UA 11 9,701 15,823
Finance costs V% EA 11 (69,502) (4,716)
Finance (costs)/income, net M%(BA) WA - FE (59,801) 11,107
Share of loss of an associate FE(ER—HEEE AR 2 BE 18 (1,634) —
Loss before income tax credit/ RETFEHIESR (BX) AT
(expense) [ (207,280) (209,636)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrsfiEe, (FAx) 12 586 (116)
Loss for the year from continuing ZFEERBEFELCEEKEE
operations (206,694) (209,752)
Discontinued operations HIEREER
Loss for the year from discontinued ZA&EEMREHKRILEEEKER
operations 7 (2,689) (444)
Loss for the year TEFEEEE (209,383) (210,196)
Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE20184F3H31 HILFE

(Restated)
(i &%)
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hat FET FET
(note 7)
(K17t 7)
Attributable to: BEL
Equity holders of the Company RAAERFER A
From continuing operations RAFFEL LT (206,076) (209,065)
From discontinued operations IR B AR A T (2,600) (436)
Loss for the year attributable to RARE=ERE ARIER
equity holders of the Company FEEE (208,676) (209,501)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR E
From continuing operations REFECEER (618) (687)
From discontinued operations KA E T (89) (8)
Loss for the year attributable to IEREREEREE
non-controlling interests & (707) (695)
Loss for the year attributable to: JEMLARFERIE
Equity holders of the Company ZAYNSIE- ZE SN (208,676) (209,501)
Non-controlling interests AR (707) (695)
(209,383) (210,196)
Loss per share for loss from continuing ANABI#EZEEH ARG
and discontinued operations REFEMEIEEZE
attributable to equity holders of the HEE 2 BREE
Company (expressed in HK cents (AFRRESIE)
per share)
— Basic — EA 13 (29.14) (31.96)
— Diluted — e 13 (29.14) (31.96)
Loss per share for loss from continuing ZX2A RI4E G AE(G K
operations attributable to equity BRELEEBEE
holders of the Company (expressed 2~ &iE#E
in HK cents per share) (AZREWTIE)
— Basic — EA 13 (28.77) (31.89)
— Diluted — g 13 (28.77) (31.89)
Loss per share for loss from PAYNSIE: S Sy SN
discontinued operations attributable ~ RE K G L EKEIR
to equity holders of the Company 2 G EE
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AR WSIE)
— Basic — B 13 (0.37) (0.07)
— Diluted — 13 (0.37) (0.07)
Annual Report 2017/2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B ZF20184 3531 HIEFE
(Restated)
(& E7))
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(note 7)
(K15t 7)
Lossfortheyear - AEEER B (210,196)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 HE W s
Items that have been reclassified or may be B E#H DA EEBAIETHHIE
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: ZE%m BB
Revaluation gain of land and buildings TH REF B — 88,737
Currency translation differences Bl E = 14,729 (13,722)
Total items that have been reclassified EEHNSERERAERN
or may be subsequently reclassified to PEEERZERARE
profit or loss 14,729 75,015
Total comprehensive income for the year ZXNEEZHEINFHAEE (194,654) (135,181)
Attributable to: FEL
Equity holders of the Company ZA/NSIL- EE SN
From continuing operations REARFELEER (191,137) (134,227)
From discontinued operations BB I EET (2,509) (426)
Total comprehensive income for the year RNATEZRTFE AEN
attributable to equity holders of the NEEEHEW LT
Company (193,646) (134,653)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR
From continuing operations REFELEETE (933) (521)
From discontinued operations RERIFEEETE (75) (7)
Total comprehensive income for the year IR A RFRE
attributable to non-controlling interests FHEWNE R (1,008) (528)
Total comprehensive income for the year B TYEE EHAFE
attributable to: ZHEWSAEE
Equity holders of the Company PAYNSIE: ZESY SN (193,646) (134,653)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR iR (1,008) (528)
(194,654) (135,181)

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE KRR ER
As at 31 March 2018
201843531 H

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bia FET FETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 15 7,958 113,534
Intangible assets ﬁﬁiﬁ% 16 804 230,788
Investment in a joint venture ABERAIZIRE 17 510 510
Interests in associate i RN - 18 6,530 7,227
Available-for-sale financial asset AEHESmEE 19 6,248 —
Long-term deposits and prepayments & Hi%4 KA 23 11,363 27,354
.. %3413 379,413
Current assets REBEE
Inventories "E 21 97,010 132,594
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IE 22 38,323 39,751
Deposits, prepayments and other %R - BNF IE&
receivables HAth & W k1A 23 136,014 32,014
Loan receivables FEWE R 24 130,873 —
Amount due from an associate JE U Bt N B FIE 18 3,662 —
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁi&iﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 25 53,514 32,839
459,396 237,198
Non-current assets classified as held HiEAEEELEZ
for sale JERBEE 26 241,830 14,730
701,226 251,928
Total assets EEHAE 734,639 631,341
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to Z2Q FERIEHE AEERA
equity holders of the Company RS
Share capital N 27 71,619 71,619
Share premium B& 1% (B 27 673,503 673,503
Other reserve H At 4 29 120,451 184,265
Accumulated losses ZEtEsa (827,603) (713,302)
37,970 216,085
Non-controlling interests IR (767) 241
Total equity fEREEE 37,203 216,326
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE KRR ER
As at 31 March 2018
201843531 H

2018 2017
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Wit FET FET
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FEB 55008 30 102,737 79,576
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E A FET IR 30 36,577 73,408
Borrowings BE 31 5,130 72,240
Obligation under finance lease BhE M E A 32 97 105
Convertible bonds AR B 55 33 17,550 17,550
Current tax liabilities BNEATRIE B & 1,077 973
163,168 243,852
Liabilities directly associated with HABARBIELRE ZERD
non-current assets classified as EEAEMRABAE
assets held for sale 26 52,408 —
R il 243,852
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Obligation under finance lease BhE A 32 129 225
Convertible bonds AR E S 33 137,053 134,199
Corporate bond NEESH 34 344,678 —
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEAE 20 — 36,739
481,860 171,163
Netcurrentassets = #AB®EERE 485,650 8,076
Total liabilities BEAHE 697,436 415,015
Total equity and liabilities EakEERERE 734,639 631,341
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 169 were F56E 169 B v In A M MERLEEEN 2018
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2018 and were FeH228H8E - WHTIEEFREKESE :
signed on its behalf
Zhu Xiaojun Cai Jiaying
KREE R
Director Director

EZE EZE

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B ZF20184 3531 HIEFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AARREEEAER
Non-
Share capital Other  Accumulated controlling
and premium reserves losses Sub-total interests ~ Total equity
RaRRH
i At ZitER it FERER ERAE
(note 27) (note 29)
(hiter) (hi29)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT AT AT AT THT FHT
Balance at 1 April 2016 Ho01654 A 1R 244 640,697 95,593 (503,801) 232,489 (2,014) 230475
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Loss for the year TEREE - - (209,501) (209,501) (695) (210,196)
Other comprehensive income A2 EkE
Currency translation differences ERAEEE - (13,889) - (13,889) 167 (13722)
Revaluation on land and buildings (note 15)  tiREF 2 EREWE M7 15) - 88,737 - 88,737 - 88,737
Totalcomprebensive icome. L T U Lo I 5) ____(1%5181)
Transactions with owners: BEARS:
Share option scheme (note 28) RiREEl i 28) - 6,808 - 6,808 - 6,808
Issuance of shares (note 27) ¥akn i 27) 104,425 - - 104,425 - 104,425
Issuance of convertible bonds (note 33) BOTERER W) - 7,075 - 7,075 - 7,075
Utilisation of statutory reserve b1 - (59) - (59) - (59)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ FH2iER T & - - - - 2,137 2,137
Non-controlling interests arising on acquisiton ~ WEEBEE 2 FiEfkiEs - - - - 346 346
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries B A FIFTAEERE - - - - 300 300
Totaltransacions withowners 3 REARBA®  was e UL 2163 1
Balance at 31 March 2017 201753 A 31 BRM
and 1 April 2017 M7E4B1B2ER 745,122 184,265 (713,302) 216,085 241 216,326
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Loss for the year TEREE - - (208,676) (208,676) (107) (209,383)
Other comprehensive income B2 EdE
Currency translation differences EMABZS - 15,030 - 15,030 (301) 14,729
Reversal upon disposal of land and buildings &+ RET 2 EA - (94,375) 94,375 - - -
Total comprehensive income 2 EbanlE — (79,345) (114,301) (193,646) (1,008) (194,654)
Transactions with owners: BEARS:
Share option scheme (note 26) BlRiEatEl i oe) - 15,531 - 15,531 — 15,531
Total ransactions with owners ERARERE = 15,831 = 16,581 = 15,531
Balance at 31 March 2018 Ho018EI A3 B LS 745,122 120,451 (827,603) 37,970 (767) 37,203
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= NE=]
HERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2018
B ZF20184 3531 HIEFE
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
baE FET FET
Cash flows from operating REEBRCHERE
activities
Cash used in operations KEAZES 35(a) (94,252) (128,242)
Interest paid BAFE (1,920) (1,675)
Income tax refund ROl T8 Fi — 119
Income tax paid [=ANIZIEC = (67)
Net cash used in operating activities Q& EBEFAA 2R F58 (96,172) (129,865)
Cash flows from investing RETBZRERE
activities
Purchases of property, plant and BAME - BEIEE
equipment (6,215) (9,066)
Purchases of intangible assets BAmRFEE 16 (9,612) (a7)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEREZHE S
plant and equipment B 127,992 463
Proceeds from disposal of assets held HEFEIELEEE T S
for sale PR 21,948 —
Interest received 2UFE 45 63
Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash Hﬁlﬁﬁfﬁ%’AT MNERMERS
acquired 37 — (83,359)
Investing in a joint venture REERBIZIRE = (510)
Acquisition of available-for-sale Wi ESRMEE
financial assets (6,248) (4,219)
Capital increment of associates N (1,445) (132)
Refundable advance payment A RETEN T8 23 (98,881) —
Loan to third parties mE=HEXR (121,217) —
Advance to associate BN EAE N 18 (3,662) —
Net cash used in investing activities & /EEFFA 2 & F5E (97,295) (96,777)
Cash flows from financing AMETEH2HERE
activities
Proceeds from borrowings BB ZF1BRIR = 91,088
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (67,110) (42,207)
Repayment of interest of convertible B[R ES 2 F 8
bonds (17,550) (9,796)
Repayment of interest of corporate BEAREFZHE
bond (31,500) —
Repayment of expense issuance of EEUBRKRES 2 BETHE
convertible bonds — (900)
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ 3EIERIEZS T E
interests = 2,137
Capital elements of finance lease BEMENRCEREH
payments (104) (276)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible 37T A% (&% 2 FT15 508
bonds — 180,000
Proceeds from issuance of new bond  #71T#{&E% < FriS s 18 329,000 —
Net cash generated from financing BB EEIFTS 2R & 55
activities 212,736 220,046
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RekEEEEER
and cash equivalents #hn, CRd)BEE 19,269 (6,596)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUzHEe kRS EEE
beginning of the year 32,839 41,039
Exchange differences bE 5 =R 1,406 (1,604)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZBESRESEEER
end of the year 25 53,514 32,839
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

—REH

Vestate Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the retailing of footwear in Hong Kong, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan, and
e-Commerce and e-Payment business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
10 November 2006 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, the
Cayman lIslands. The headquarter and principal place of
business in Hong Kong has been changed from 7th Floor,
Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong to Suite 708, 7th Floor, Champion
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong since from 20
June 2018.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the Republic of Seychelles.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), unless
otherwise stated, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board on 22
June 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
mRERE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
revaluation of land and buildings, certain financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and assets held for sale, which are carried at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

21

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
reported a net loss of HK$209,383,000 and had
a net cash outflow from operating activities of
HK$96,172,000. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$53,514,000.
On 8 May 2017, the Group issued a two-year bond
with principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest
rate of 12% per annum for the first year and 13% per
annum for the second year. The bond is guaranteed
by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Chairman of the Company, and is
pledged by the shares of China Investment S.p.A., a
company with 70% interest owned by Ms. CAI Jiaying,
the Director of the Company (“Milan Properties
Vendor”). The Group is required to redeem the bond at
its principal amount HK$350,000,000 in May 2019.

All the above events and conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, and therefore, that
the Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of these circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity of
the Group, and its available sources of financing in
assessing whether the Group has sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. The Directors
have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management covering a period of twelve
months from 31 March 2018. In order to improve the
Group’s financial position and alleviate the liquidity
pressure, the Directors have been implementing various
measures as follows:

(@) On 20 June 2018, an independent third party
granted a stand-by revolving loan facilities of up to
RMB200,000,000 to the Group, which is available
to drawn down on or after 21 June 2018. The
loan facility is guaranteed by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun,
the Chairman of the Company, and bears interest
at 18% per annum. The Directors believe that
this loan facility is available for draw down as
additional working capital of the Group, as and
when needed. The Directors are of the opinion
that this facility will be renewed upon expiry on
30 June 2019.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

21

Going concern basis (Continued)

(b)

(d)

During August 2017 and June 2018, the Group
signed two non-binding memorandum of
understanding (“MOUs”) with the potential buyers
to sold out the e-Commerce and e-Payment
business at a consideration, with reference to its
market value respectively.

On 15 June 2018, the Group planned to sold out
the financial services business at a consideration
with reference to its market value respectively.

In relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties,
which is detailed in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 June 2017, the Directors have
considered to withdraw the refundable advance
payment of HK$98,881,000 from the Milan
Properties Vendor to solve the liquidity problem of
the Group if necessary.

The Group is implementing various measures,
such as optimising its overall sales network by
relocating certain of its outlets, and controlling the
costing to improve the profit margin and operating
cashflows of its footwear retailing business.

The Group will also continue to seek for other
alternative financing and bank borrowings to
finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next twelve months from
31 March 2018. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

21

Going concern basis (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainty exists
as to whether the Directors are able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern would
depend upon the Group’s ability to generate adequate
operating, investing and financing cash flows through
achieving the following plans:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Continuous compliance by the Group of the existing
terms and conditions of all the convertible bonds
and corporate bond issued by the Group as at
the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements such that these convertible bonds and
corporate bond will continue to be available to the
Group and be repaid in accordance with the agreed
repayment schedules;

The independent third party will be able to
provide the standby evolving loan facilities of up
to RMB200,000,000 to the Group as and when
needed which will be renewable upon expiry on 30
June 2019;

Successful negotiation with the potential buyers for
the disposal of the e-Commerce and e-Payment
business;

Successful negotiation with the potential buyer for
the disposal of the financial services business;

The Group can withdraw the refundable advance
payment in connection with the purchase of the
Milan Properties to solve the liquidity problem of
the Group if necessary;

Successful implementation of measures to improve
the sales margin and operating cashflows of its
footwear retailing business; and

Obtaining additional sources of financing or bank
borrowings as and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to reduce
the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net
realisable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.2 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 2.2 KNEBFERHZEHITR KSR

The following new and amended standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 April 2017.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred
HKAS 12 Tax Assets for Unrealised

Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that
will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the note to the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

The adoption of the amendments has not impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously recognised deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities”

The amendments issued under the annual improvement
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities” to clarify that the disclosure
requirements of HKFRS 12, other than the requirements
to disclose summarised financial information, also apply
to an entity’s interests in other entities classified as
held for sale or discontinued operations in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has no
impact on these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group

The following new and amended standards are
not effective for financial year beginning on 1 April
2017, and have not been applied in preparing these

23 CHEMEMRERBEYBELRERR
FRANZHRT RBIETTER

AT ETR] R ERT 2RI 2017 54 A
1 B2 B B R R E I
R R TR A MR o

consolidated financial statements.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or
after

RUT AR Z2%
Bz BB AN

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

2014 F £ 2016 FHEH 2 BB
WEERNFEE

Amendments to HKAS 40
BB GFERF 409 BRI R

Amendments to HKFRS 2
BBV BRELNE 2R 2 EFTA
HKFRS 9
BRMBERE LR FE R
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BEMBRELRE IR ZEFTAR

HKFRS 15
FEMIBERE LR E 1557

Amendments to HKFRS 15
BB EHRERERE 1557 2BFT A

HKFRS 16
BBV EHRERERE 1657

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

BB (EBRUEREREZES) —
BRREFE 2255

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
EE (BB BREREZEY) —
BIEFE 235

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

B BREENFE 105
REBGTERZE 285 2 IBF] R

Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

BB GFTHERE 28R ZABETAS
REERRIREERAIZIRE

1 January 2018

201841 A1H

Transfers of Investment Property

HEEREYE

1 January 2018
201851 H1H

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions

BARIERHEARS

1 January 2018
20181 H1H

Financial instruments
SRTAE

1 January 2018
2018F 1 H1H

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
REEXFUEREHE

1 January 2019
20191 H1H

Revenue from contracts with customers

BEF&HWA

1 January 2018
20181 H1H

Clarification to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018

FEMBRELENFAGHR 2EF 201841 A1H
Leases 1 January 2019
e 20191 A1H

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

SNER B MIENHR(E

1 January 2018

20181 A1 H

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

FriStiiRIE 2 TARBAE =

1 January 2019
20191 A1 H

Sale or contribution of assets between an To be determined

investor and its associate of joint venture
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AR ELEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 CHEGENAENBELERAEEE

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impacts of these new and revised
HKFRSs on the financial statements of the Group in
the initial application and the expected impacts on the
Group’s financial performance and position are set out
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may
make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 EBEMEEKRERBEYEEREER

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 March 2018, the
Directors anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

. Loan receivables carried at amortised cost are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.

. Equity security investments classified as
available-for-sale financial asset carried at cost
less impairment classified as either FVTPL or
irrevocably elect to designate as FVTOCI (without
recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9. The Group
has not yet decided whether it will irrevocably
designate these investments as FVTOCI or
classify it as FVTPL. Either classification would
give rise to a change in accounting policy as
currently the Group recognises the fair value
changes of available-for-sale financial asset in
other comprehensive income until disposal or
impairment, when gains or losses are recycled
to profit or loss in accordance with the Group’s
policies. This change in policy will have no impact
on the Group’s net assets and total comprehensive
income but will impact on reported performance
amounts such as profit and earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 CHEGENALENEYERELAEFRE

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

° All other financial assets and financial liabilities
will continue to be measured on the same bases
as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost and other items that are
subject to the impairment provisions upon application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group. However, the Directors expect
the effect would not be significant.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 CEMENAENETEERERIR

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The Group mainly operates the retailing business during
the year, where the sale of goods are recognised when
a group entity sells a product to the customer. In the
view of the Directors, there is only one performance
obligation in the retailing, when applying HKFRS 15,
as there is no material after sale services and sales
returns. The Group has assessed the impact of HKFRS
15 and expects that application of the standard will
have no significant impact, when applied, on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, the
application of HKFRS 15 may result in more disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-
use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 CEMEMARENETEELRERIR

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of the Group in respect
of retail shops, offices, warehouses and furniture,
fixtures and equipment as at 31 March 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$37,595,000. The Directors do not
expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with
the current accounting policy would result in significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance but it is
expected that the Group has to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liabilities and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use assets,
and that certain portion of the future minimum lease
payments under the Group’s operating leases will be
required to be recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.

The Group will also be required to remeasure the
lease liabilities upon the occurrence of certain events
(e.g. a change in the lease term) and recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liabilities as
an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. In addition,
payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities
will be presented within financing activities in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
mREE(E)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the entity
shall determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
IRETHRME

3.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.1

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (1) power over the investee, (2) exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
(8) the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.3

3.4

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in the same way
as other non-financial assets.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed
the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

. Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

. Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FESTBEMESE)

3.4 Joint arrangements (Continued) 3.4 EETHE)
In assessing the classification of interests in joint R E SRR 2 D ER - K
arrangements, the Group considers: SEgEE:
e The structure of the joint arrangement; e  EETHZEE

. The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

. The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
in the same manner as investments in associates (i.e.
using the equity method).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.5

3.6

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on
the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see note 3.13), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment 3.7 YME - BERRE

Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are
stated at valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using
fair values at the end of the reporting period. Increases
in value arising on revaluation are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of properties revaluation reserve.
Decreases in value arising on revaluation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of
the same property and thereafter recognised in profit
or loss. Any subsequent increases are recognised in
profit or loss up to the amount previously charged and
thereafter to the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained earnings.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are
as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Investment property is
measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently
at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group
chooses not to classify and account for these property
interests as investment property. During the last year
ended, the Group has reclassified its investment
property as asset held for sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.9

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.

Licence 25 years
Computer software 5 years
Trademark 5 years

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts (see note 3.13).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.10 Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured
at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets. Regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of
a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention
in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets
are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

. granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of
the loss is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FESTBREBEE)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued) 3.10 $@MIA(Z)
(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) =HEEE)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the liabilities or recognising gains
or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the
liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or
(iii) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHHRBEE)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings, obligation
under finance lease, the debt element of
convertible bonds and corporate bond issued
by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Convertible instruments

Convertible instruments represents convertible
bonds issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into their respective items on
initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert into
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds
reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds reserve
until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be transferred to share capital. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be released to the retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Convertible instruments (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the

obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.11 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale when:

they are available for immediate sale;
management is committed to a plan to sell;

it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;

the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a
reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

a sale is expected to complete within 12 months
from the date of classification

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of:

their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy; and

fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-
current assets (including those in a disposal group) are
not depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year
are included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.12

3.13

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

. Intangible assets;

J property, plant and equipment under cost model;
and

3 investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (except for those classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 3.11)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.13

3.14

3.15

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or CGU
(see note 3.5), discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of three
months or less.

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FESTBREBEE)

3.15 Income tax (Continued) 3.15 FiBBi(&)
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary BREFBIBADRMBRE 2 EEMABE
differences between the carrying amounts of assets EEEERHEMARESER
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the EREZBEED i EastER
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except MaflzmEBREEREENREE
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that SN SR ERRM Y N EEERE
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred EHIBEEE BEERIEBEERE A2
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary &) FA B ER A e A 4R 8H A HOR e By 2 R
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to ZIBERTHER - T IBILTEEE A
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will REREESFEAEREAEERS
be available against which deductible temporary HAIRE R B LR < T RETE o

differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining EREMERBERE G ERF 40
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax RIIEME R AFEYE  HETE
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair ARFIEREERESE 2 AEME Y
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless —BIRTEZFFRIER o BRIERE I
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts B DRAZEREMEZELENRIAS
on these investment properties are measured using the BOERSRE A AEANZARTDE
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment HEZSREMEIHNEGTE - B
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting BYENTINEREESENABER
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment M(MEEBEE) BEHEZIEYE
property is depreciable and is held within a business NEZE2HEEN = EBEXRE
model whose objective is to consume substantially all B AR R -

the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable BRME AR - B QR kLR
temporary differences arising on investments in BRZREELEZERH TN Z51E
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, RIELERIBEE - RSB EIEHE
except where the Group is able to control the reversal R Z A - DARE R ZHRAA 6
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the EA] B R FH O 2 B RBRI o
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except STy BmiER - HEMWMPATEHa
when they relate to items recognised in other REMEEWEFERZIERE BHA
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are Broh - FEUIBERT - AT IR EA
also recognised in other comprehensive income or PEHRHER W EEEENER
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity BRZEEAMB EHBRT A
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in MEERERER -

equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.16 Foreign currency 3.16 HhiE

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign currency translation
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHERBEE)

3.17 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Short term employee benefit

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period
in which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the related
service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees
and others providing similar services, the fair value
of the services received is measured by reference
to the fair value of the options at the date of grant.
Such fair value is recognised in profit or loss over
the vesting period with a corresponding increase
in the share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account
by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting
period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on
the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value
of the options granted. As long as all non-market
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is
made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.17 Employee benefits (Continued) 3.17 EERERI(E)

(d) Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in
profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option
scheme which is determined to be a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction with employees.
An option pricing model is used to measure the
Group’s liability at grant date and subsequently
at the end of each reporting period, taking into
account the terms and conditions on which
the bonus is awarded and the extent to which
employees have rendered service. Movements
in the liability (other than cash payments) are
recognised in profit or loss.

3.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.19 Revenue recognition 3.19 =R

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates,
returns and discounts and after eliminated sales within
the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods

The Group operates a chain of retail outlets for
selling footwear. Sale of goods are recognised
when a group entity sells a product to the
customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card.

(b) Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of footwear products
in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has
full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesale’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery does not occur until the
products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the wholesaler, and either
the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

97

WHEBERAEEAEEBBETH®
HEEMERBERABEREZA
FME - KSR MERIBER - @0 R
R MALEH AR EARILHERA
HE o

2 st S RRBE A SEMLGTE - RIBERIR
BRENmBERATER R TRAE
BEXREBENERHERE  KNEH
SRS REBHEEZMARA
SHERRA  ARETERKES
MR ENTE  AEEREE
LEREETHE  EFEETREFPA
B RPBARBRTHE N -

(a) HEEmR
AEEAHEEEHKETEBEH
Eeo R EEERHEERTER
FEAEEER TEHE—R

NIREHEMREH -

(b) HEEm — HE

AEERSLEM S LHEZEE
BEm EXEEEXNEMT
B MABRHHEERZ
REFEBRERIBIGEE  AX
BERBTZEERREREEE
MZEEM ARBERAHEE
S RERNEERTHE
REBR RBRXRERDEBR T
ERRMERCDRREES K
MEm  BMENERBEIEE
BURERTEMZMAREDE
EIAT ARBTERERRM -

Annual Report 2017/2018
2017/2018 FF 3k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FESTBEMESE)
3.19 Revenue recognition (Continued) 3.19 WRER(EZ)
(c) Interest income (c) FIEUWKA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion M e AF B EE M B A IRE
basis using the effective interest method. L IR R -
(d) Licence fee and royalty income (d) #HHFEAERZEFEKA
Licence fee and royalty income is recognised on BHEREBLRENEIARRE
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance RAthaE 2 NI BT EERER o

of the relevant agreements.

(e) Rental income (e) HELWKA
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a KEHERSWAREBEANE
straight-line basis over the lease period. KROETER o
3.20 Government grants 3.20 BURF#EED
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair finl BE 0 & 2R 75 #8 AT Us BUER AT #88 Bh K
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the REBBESTHANS IS - Bleik
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all NEBEWERER) -

attached conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.21 Lease 3.21 AE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability.
Lease payments are analysed between capital and
interest. The interest element is charged to profit or loss
over the period of the lease and is calculated so that it
represents a constant proportion of the lease liability.
The capital element reduces the balance owed to the
lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.21 Lease (Continued) 3.21 HE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentive received from the
lessor and exclusive of any turnover rental payments
which are calculated by reference to a pre-determined
percentage of a tenant’s monthly sales) are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Turnover rental payments are
recognised on an accrual basis.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment,
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other short-term and other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.22 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iiiy Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

3.22 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iiiy dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
BAGHEE R A E

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual
value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of any future management
determination of shop relocation or renovation.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 102

3.22 BB AL(E)

(a)

ZERANLZORRERE Y ERE
BETRGZZBATHRETE L
ZERIEKB R B

(i) ZBALZFEEREBREREHF
fa:

(i) ZmBATZEBXEEHEZTF
7 R

(i) ZBATHZB AL ZEBKA
EHEIZEA -

fEat kA B e TERE - AEEEL
BEEMAR(BENBREBER TEE
RAEZREEFZIBR)MAES

AREEE RKAEH T REBR - BER

BE  BUtEEZSHER B H

BERERGERER - FEEARRE

HAHTEMRFREZEERAGBLZ

%Eiﬁ¢ﬁ$ﬁﬂ¥2%ﬁ&?“
AT o

M- BERRE2IERFH

AEEEEEETEME  BEER
Rt ERERRERATER
A e eEEt DREME RIEREZ
ME - BELREBEZERERSGEER
FERFH2BELRAE - EEE
B REJE o RB BT Z AR HOR
E AR EHERERED o
R ERE(E K AT A BE R Se Al 2 14
it BEEBREMATEERR - I
HAMR D RES L E 2RISR
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
EXRETEFTRABEE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the years in which such estimates have
been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Impairment of the disposal group of e-Commerce
and e-Payment business property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
EXRSTEFTRABEE)

(e)

U]

Impairment of trade receivables and other
receivables

The policy of impairment assessment for receivables
of the Group is based on the current market condition
and the credit history of its customers, department
stores, counterparties and other debtors. Management
reassesses the provision at the end of each reporting
period.

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets and
convertible bonds

The fair values of financial assets that are traded in
an active market are determined by the quoted market
prices. For fair values of financial assets not traded
in an active market, the methodologies, models,
assumptions used in determining the fair value of
financial assets not traded in an active market and
derivative financial instruments require judgement,
which are mainly based on market conditions existing at
each reporting date.

The fair value of financial instruments and other
financial liabilities (including embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds) that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using appropriate
valuation techniques and making assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each reporting
date. The fair values of the embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds are determined using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model adjusted for specific
terms and conditions of the respective instruments.
Major inputs into the model include quoted market
prices, risk free rates, expected volatility, dividend
yields and the option’s life.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
EXRETEFTRABEE)

(9)

(h)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Company. The plan comprises a
share option scheme. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options or shares is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options or shares granted as at
the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii)
including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options or shares that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired through business combinations and fair
value of consideration at the date of acquisition

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations, which requires the Group
to record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
their fair values on the date of acquisition. Significant
judgment and estimate are used to determine the
completion date and fair value of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The valuation involves
estimating future cash flows from the acquired business,
determining appropriate discount rates, asset lives and
other assumptions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
2EER
The Group is principally engaged in the retailing of footwear

in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan, and e-Commerce and
e-Payment business.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the
Group’s financial information to assess the performance and
allocate resources.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers difference
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

. Retailing of footwear
. e-Commerce and e-Payment

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment loss
without allocation of administrative expenses, other gains,
other income and finance income/(costs), which is consistent
with that in the financial statements. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the Directors consider to dispose the
e-Commerce and e-Payment business. During August 2017
and June 2018, MOUs were signed for the potential disposal,
which led to discontinue the operation of e-Commerce
and e-Payment business. In accordance of HKFRS 5,
e-Commerce and e-Payment business for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017 were classified as discontinued
operation in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Segment assets mainly exclude loan receivables in respect of
the Group’s financial services business, refundable advance
payment in relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties
and deferred tax assets.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current tax liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds, corporate bond and
obligation under finance lease.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are
based on the country in which the customer is located, and
total assets and capital expenditure are based on the country
where the assets are located.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 106

AEEXTERNER PEESEESEET
EUREFEBREFIIER -

HITEFCERTREIREERERA - #i17
EXEHAKEZMBEMAFERR LD
BEIR

AEBEAMERTRE DB - ZF 0I5B
VER  MEEHRHARERLRELFT
ENE 2 EEEEE - TXBURANEE R RT3
ENEFER

. BETE
. EFHBRETEM

PTESREDTBB(ROEEMITHRE
A Ehlzs - EalR ARG A (8
)z stEft g E oo 75 - BEK
MR E B - REZE2018F 3 A31 H
HFE BRZERHEESTFESERETIMN
¥7%5 - 7R20174 8 A KX 20184F 6 A Hif
RARERMEEHESTEE T EEE
BHEFEERETITEFEIELE -
RIEEBMBERELNESS  ETEER
BT Y MEEREE2018F K 2017E3 A
S1ALEFEERAEE 2 KAV BRI T
BN ARIHCEER o

DHBETETBREERNEESBRS XS
BRZEWED  ERAKEMEBRZA
BB PEETREE

DHEBEETETRENAKIBEEE  BEMK
HBE - TBRES  AfEFLBEHRE
HRHE o

ROEDBRETS - $ENIRESHER
RIEE » MAESEREANL IIREER
ERRAEL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
PEER(E)
(a) Business and geographical segment (a) EBHEMEDEP

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE2018F3HA3IAIEFE 2 HEB

are as follows:

Revenue s

Segment loss o6

Finance income HHIA

Finance costs HBER

Share of loss of an associate Efh-HRERd Bl

Income tax credit ilciie)

Loss for the year FERER

Other seqment items are as follows:  ZfAE7EE T -

Capital expenditure EXER

Share of loss of associates EEBENTER

Share option expenses ERERT

Depreciation of property, plant % FRREE
and equipment LIE

Amortisation of intangible assets  EFAEEH

Impairment of property, plant 0z BRREE
and equipment L

Gain on disposal of asset held ~~ ERB(EEERE
for sale e

(Gain)flosses on disposal of HENE - BE R
property, plant and equipment &)/ B8

Write back of inventories, net BEER F8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
DEER(E)

(a)

Business and geographical segment (Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2017

are as follows:

(a) X*BHEMEDI(E)

HE2017F3A3MBIEEE 2D
EEWMT

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HxEEZEREBR QA

HENTEIANALER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REERE RIEBEEH
Retailing of footwear e-Commerce
g5 and
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal  Unallocated e-Payment Total
E1EH
(35 hE fig Iy AE REFRA a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8 000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#27)) (#27)) (427)) (#27)) (#27)) (#%7))
(note 7)
Wz7)
Revenue Wi 119,368 434,382 7807 561,557 - - 561,557
Segment loss HHER (37,208) (51,354) (407) (88,969) (131,774) (444) (221,187
Finance income A 15,823
Finance costs HHER (4,716)
Income tax expense HERR (116)
Loss for the year TEEEHE (210,19)
Other segment items are A AEEENT
as follows:
Capital expenditure AR 3,203 6,217 74 9,574 - - 0574
Share of loss of an associate i ANV 7 - - - - - (64) (54)
Share option expenses BREAR - - - - 6,808 - 6,308
Share-based compensation RO BEE RERT
expenses - - - - 9,034 - 9,034
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% - BERiE7 2
and equipment 5,530 6,099 89 11,718 - 63 11,781
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EF/AE & 13 693 - 806 - - 806
Impairment of property, plant and 1%  BERFE
equipment L 871 234 - 1,105 - - 1,105
(Gain)floss on disposal of property,  HEH1% - BERRE?
plant and equipment (hx)/ER (323) 1,339 % 1,051 - - 1,051
Write back of inventories, net FERE 23 (1,381) (5,267) 21) (6,669) - - (6,669)
Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEE R (E)
(a) Business and geographical segment (Continued) (a) ¥BHE#HESI(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2018 are MR2018F3 AN AZHBEERA
as follows: BT
Segment assets HHEE
Unallocated assets APREE
Total assets BElfE
Segment labilties AHEE
Unallocated labilities APRER
Total liabilies BEEE
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e M BRRHEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEER(E)
(a) Business and geographical segment (Continued) (a) ¥BHEMEHI(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2017 are R2017F3HABIBZHHEERE
as follows: BT
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REREXH RIEERH
Retailing of footwear e-Commerce
HETE and
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal ~ e-Payment Total
STEH
Bk bt Gl hat REFRN @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
(Restateq)
(#Z7))
(note 7)
(hit7)
Segment assets PHEE 169,706 195,202 6,027 370,935 232,608 603,543
Unallocated assets AEEE 27,198
Total assets BELR 631,341
Segment liabilities AHEE 126,854 90,207 7,001 224,152 861 225,013
Unallocated liabilities AAREE 190,002
Total liabilities BRGE 415,015
Specified non-current assets
BEFRDEE
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET TFE8T
Hong Kong &5 2,059 347,139
PRC i 21,042 21,530
Taiwan = 11 32
23,112 368,701
(b) Information about major customers (b) EHRAEXEEFZER
For the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, none of B E2018F 201743 A31 H L
the customers contributed 10% or more of the revenue E - BEEFPEBMAEE10%3A £
of the Group. TUkzS o

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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6

EXPENSES BY NATURE

EMEsE2EX
(Restated)
(E5)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
(note 7)
(H1at7)
Continuing operations HEREER
Purchase of and changes in inventories BEAGFENEFEE 176,822 279,665
Auditor’s remuneration % AN B &
— Audit service — ZHRTS 1,650 2,550
— Non-audit service — R BRTE 44 91
Depreciation of property, plant L E Ty
and equipment ZITE
— owned assets — B CAE 7,104 11,574
— leased assets — HECEE 123 144
Impairment of property, plant and M - WEREEORE
equipment 233 1,105
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEE 2EH 589 806
Operating lease rental in respect of HETHREF &L
leasehold land and buildings isk=¢i:ka
— minimum lease payments — REBEHIE 17,480 29,477
— turnover rental expenses — REEBHECHERX 105,547 170,436
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREEMY 9,184 14,234
Write-back of inventories, net FERE - F8E (5,753) (6,669)
Employee benefit expenses EERAIFEZ 155,729 206,551
Other expenses E bR 57,802 76,678
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKAE  HER
distribution costs and IR AR AT
administrative expenses ekt 526,554 786,642
Expenses by nature of the Group has been presented in the REEENEREVNNZ AEB IR E B2
consolidated income statement as follows: S ONE
(Restated)
(&E5)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(note 7)
(Hiat7)
Cost of sales SHE A 171,069 272,996
Selling and distribution costs HE Ky #HBR 251,757 377,530
Administrative expenses THER 103,728 136,116
526,554 786,642
Annual Report 2017/2018
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e M BRRHEE

7 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

MIEREER

During August 2017 and June 2018, the Group entered 20178 A K2018F6 A « AEEFI L
into MOUs to dispose of the e-Commerce and e-Payment BEBSHALEEFEBERE TN
business. The disposal expected to be completed before e HEEHEBHN2018FFRAI A
the end of the year 2018, the date on which the control BIETFESMRE T X NER 2 ITHEERE
of the e-Commerce and e-Payment business passed to WEAZBE -BFEBEEFINES
the acquirer. The sales, results and cash flows of the HE - EFENMREREWOT -

e-Commerce and e-Payment business were as follows:

2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Other income HA A 228 5
Share of loss of an associate AR — AR AR ZEE (595) (54)
Expenses = (2,322) (395)
Loss before tax expense B IE R X AR R (2,689) (444)
Income tax expense FrigFAx< = —
Loss for the year from discontinued REERBLIECEHED
operations o= (2,689) (444)
Operating cash flows KERSME 610 11
Investing cash flows BERSRE (18) —
Financing cash flows BERESRE — —
Total cash flows WeMELTE 592 11
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of BFEEAEFXNEBREEZEZHE
e-Commerce and e-Payment business at the year ended MIEFEsEERABRZREEBENG
date are disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial WS ImER 5T 26 NI o
statements.
For the purpose of presenting discontinued operations, MEFNERILEBMS - AILRES
the comparative consolidated income statement and the Wask RABENTE EF 27 - a0
related notes have been re-presented as if the operations FASKRIEFEBRA LB EABIE &
discontinued during the year had been discontinued at the 1k e

beginning of the comparative period.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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10

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET
Hipzz, (E518) - FE8

2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Gains on disposal of assets held for sale HEFAEIELEEE 2 W 7,217 —
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEeMEE 2 E18
financial assets = ()
Fair value gain on revaluation of BEELEEECEM
assets held for sale NEEYE — 830
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEMZE - BEREREZ
plant and equipment Wz, (EE) 23,878 (1,051)
Net foreign exchange losses HINEE 1R E (543) (77)
30,552 (400)
OTHER INCOME
Halg A
(Restated)
(i =7)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F&T
(note 7)
(Htst7)
Licence fee and royalty income B AEREMNERA 460 426
Government subsidies (note (i)) T8 Bh (H7 32 (7)) 1,882 1,879
Others Hith 1,658 2,437
4,000 4,742

(i) Government subsidies represent incentives received from the

s

i)

PRC tax authority for operating in Waigaogiao Free Trade

Zone in the PRC.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
BEERIMX(BEESHE)

BT B 1R L A & T BN S AR T E EP
B 75 T A B U R 2 R R -

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TEMIEA 117,202 161,904
Pension costs — defined contribution BRENAE — EREHERETE
plans 20,352 24,926
Welfare and other expenses B R EA R 2,644 3,879
Share option expenses (note 28) BIRER S (K77 28) 15,531 6,808
Share based compensation expenses IR R ER
(note 27(b)) (Kizt27(b)) — 9,034
155,729 206,551
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
BEEEABEX(BEESEHES) (&)

Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by BEEREMNLEZ(BBERAMEH(F622F)
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. £383f5 - RANEBEEEFmE L) A
622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of (£622GE ) REE LMRAET 2 #H5E)

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBETHRABZHE
The remuneration of every director and the chief HZE2018F 201763 A31BHIEF
executive for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 B ZEERESTHRABZHE
is set out below: AT
For the year ended 31 March 2018: HE2018F3A31 HILFE :
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s REAZES(THARALEME R
services as a director, whether of the Company or its A Z ANTEL AR 2 B e

subsidiary undertaking

Estimated
money
value
of other
benefit
Fees Salary (Note a) Total
H {th 35 F
ZIhETE
fBE
we E2 3 (Kiata) at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Name H®H FAET FET FET FET

Executive directors: WITEE

Mr. Zhu Xiaojun KEFLE — 2,400 — 2,400

Mr. Chen Zhi (note c) BRE L& (Hfitc) — — — —

Mr. Kang Jianming FEERLAE — 1,696 2,590 4,286

Ms. Cai Jiaying (note d) BEERL T (HiFd) — 450 2,590 3,040

Mr. Yin Wansun (note e) BRFuik ot (Mite) = = 2,590 2,590

Independent Non-executive B3 JFH{TESE -

directors:

Ms. Zhao Hong (note h) k£ (Hith) — 203 216 419

Dr. He Chengying (note i)  {Alss8HE L (H57i) = = = —

Mr. Chau Wai Hing (note h) EIB® 44 (ffath) — 180 — 180

Mr. Leung Man Ho (note b) 2254 (ffatb) — 141 — 141
— 5,070 7,986 13,056

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
BEEEANBEX(BEESEHS) (2)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRESTBRABZME(E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017: HZE2017F3A31HIEFE -
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s METEE(TRARFKENE A
services as a director, whether of the Company or its A Z AT EZ sl 2 e

subsidiary undertaking

Estimated
money
value of
other
benefit
Fees Salary (Note a) Total
Hitbtg 2
hEt B
BE
e e (Kiita) et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Name HH TFET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Zhu Xiaojun KEFLE — 2,400 — 2,400
Mr. Kang Jianming FRZRAL A — 1,696 1,102 2,798
Ms. Cai Jiaying (note d) BEBZT (M) — — 1,102 1,102
Mr. Yin Wansun (note e) BRFuik ot (Mite) — — 1,102 1,102
Mr. Wang Lingxiao (note f) T &T L4 (H1aEf) — 173 — 173
Non-executive director: JEHITES -
Mr. Chen Mingzhong BRIS B4 (Matg)
(Note g) — 500 — 500
Independent Non-executive &3 JFHITE S ¢
directors:
Ms. Zhao Hong (note h) k£ (Bt h) — 203 92 295
Dr. He Chengying (note i)  {al#s8E L (H57i) — 300 92 392
Mr. Chau Wai Hing (note h) EIEE 44 (ffath) — 30 — 30
Mr. Chen Jianzhong (note j) BRER 54 (f15%)) — 150 — 150
Mr. Hu Jinxing (note k) IR A (Wit k) — 150 — 150
— 5,602 3,490 9,092
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
BEEEABEX(BEESEHES) (&)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Note a
Note b

Note ¢

Note d

Note e

Note f

Note g

Note h

Note i

Note j

Note k

Other benefits include share options.

Mr. Leung Man Ho was appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from
19 June 2017.

Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as an executive
director with effect from 15 May 2017 and resigned
with effect from 16 June 2017.

Ms. Cai Jiaying was appointed as executive
director with effect from 1 April 2016.

Mr. Yin Wansun was appointed as executive
director with effect from 19 May 2016.

Mr. Wang Lingxiao was resigned as executive
director with effect from 15 August 2016.

Mr. Chen Mingzhong was resigned as a non-
executive director with effect from 12 August 2016.
Ms. Zhao Hong and Mr. Chau Wai Hing were
appointed as an independent non-executive
directors with effect from 1 April 2016 and 1
February 2017 respectively.

Dr. He Chengying was appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from
1 April 2016 and resigned with effect from 1 April
2017.

Mr. Chen Jianzhong was appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect
from 1 April 2016 and resigned with effect from 12
August 2016.

Mr. Hu Jinxing was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2016
and resigned with effect from 15 November 2016.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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e
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
BEEEANBEX(BEESEHS) (2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits related to define benefit plan for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

The Company issued CB-Il (as defined in note 33) in
August 2016 with personal guarantee obtained from
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun Chairman of the Company (note 33).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates
and connected entities of such directors (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).
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(b)

()

(d)

(e)

()

EERHKEN

HZE2018F3A31HILFE  #HE
5 == O WO S A R A ] B2 T R A A
AEA RINER (2017 F « &) o

ESBBEA

HZEZ2018F3A31HILFE #HE
% =B AN Bk Uk B AT ] B B s A
(20174 : 4E) -

RESESRBAE=FTREZRE

HZE2018F3A31BILEE - AR
ATEGESEERERATNE=ZS
SAHRE (20174 : &) -

FHES ZESZSZEAERR
FHEECREERZER  BUE
RREMRZ 2EH

FN - RARR2016 F 8 A#(TA[
R EH I (E&E RKIFES3) - MEE AR
REEFBRES o4& 7 B AERER
B (FE33) °

BHE2018F3A3THILFE - #HIE
BEREEXREFES EABERE
ERESECRMEERCENR  BUE
REEMRZ HLHE(2017 F « &) »

ESRXE ZHIAEHNHPZEKX
R

REEZ2018FE3AZIHILFELER
Bl NI AR MEAARES
TEARRBFEI M EARREBE
ZERARS RHRANOTPEELM
BEHEAENER (20174 : ) o
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
BEEEABEX(BEESEHES) (&)

(g) Five highest paid individuals (9) EEESFMAL

TR AEEBREATZSHFHALEE
47 (2017F 2K )EF HFEPE
RMFE10@) 2 2D MR FR - &

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group during the year include 4 directors (2017:
2) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis

presented in note 10(a). The emoluments payable to e TATZMEWT -
the remaining individuals are as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXEHS - EFEEAM
other allowances and benefits-in-kind HAth2BE R EYH = 1,560 6,894
Share options expenses BB AR AR 2 2,218 604
Share based compensation expense IR E R — 9,034
Contributions to pension plans RRBET B 18 36
3,796 16,568
1N 2 < -
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bepr@aERinT :
2018 2017
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 BLE
4,000,000 /% 7T 1 —
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 /8702
5,000,0005 7T — 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 B2
5,500,000,5 7T — 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 BT E
7,000,0005 7T = 1
1 3

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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11 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET
MBER WA - FE

(Restated)
(E5)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F&T
(note 7)
(Met7)
Finance income RSN
— Fair value gain on convertible bonds ~ — AI#RES 2 A FEWREE — 13,521
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITHERZF B A 45 63
— Interest income from loan — BRZFBIA 9,656 2,239
9,701 15,823
Finance costs 7% &
— Fair value loss on convertible bonds ~ — A[#R (&% 2 A FEEIR (15,869) —
— Interest on convertible bonds — AHRRESHZFE (4,535) (3,041)
— Interest on corporate bond — RAEEHZHE (47,178) —
— Interest on bank borrowings — RITEEZHE (1,805) (1,444)
— Interest expense — others — FIERZ — Efh (103) (216)
— Interest on obligation under finance — REREREZHE
lease (12) (15)
(69,502) (4,716)
Finance (costs)/income, net B (BA) WA - FE (59,801) 11,107

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
FrsBiE % (%)

The amount of income tax credit/(expense) charged to the REREWERINB 2 FBHESE, (F
consolidated income statement represents: Y)EEA
2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current income tax BNERFT1S AR
— Hong Kong profits tax — BAEMEM = —
— PRC corporate income tax — RS = —
— Over provision in respect of prior — BT FEBERE
year — 119
— 119
Deferred income tax (note 20) REFTISEL(HT3L 20) 586 (235)
586 (116)
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e M BRRHEE

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)
FERER(BX) (&)

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates MIBDEASBREMTERR 2RIT
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Hong HEMEHE BARAEEREZE
Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the Group has 2018 K 2017F 3 A31 B I FEW
no assessable profits for the years ended 31 March 2018 and BERTUGEHN MU ERLBBFEH
2017. TR -

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax expense REBARFTAAESHAZANBEZHE
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using B REARGE B RN 2 k¥
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the AREFE 2 ERSEIERBNOT

consolidated entities as follows:

(Restated)
(&E7))
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETL
(note 7)
(Met7)
Loss before income tax credit/(expense) KztFrEF#E %R, (FI) Al
B 207,280 209,636
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates of IRE I E 16.5% (2017 F :
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 16.5% ) 5T & 2 FIH 34,201 34,590
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries M E i FERER KL 7 T8
operating in other jurisdictions RAIZPRABE 2 & 7,956 9,570
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA 7,613 4,570
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A {ER{IBIEF0 2 FA 52 (19,306) (4,529)
Deductible temporary differences not RIERA MY R ERE
recognised (2,689) (1,048)
Tax losses not recognised I R 2 BIE G A (27,189) (43,388)
Over-provision in respect of prior year BIEFEBEEE — 119
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfisge, (%) 586 (116)
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13

14

LOSS PER SHARE
BRER

For continuing and discontinued operations

REERALREEBMS

(a) Basic (a) EZX
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss EREAREEDIZBAEE RN E)E
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the =B ARGBERNFRNDETE
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue Bk METFHEEHE -
during the year.
(Restated)
(E51)
2018 2017
(note 7)
(K13t 7)
Loss from continuing operations RAmEREE ARG
attributable to equity holders of the REEEXEB 2B
Company (HK$'000) (F#T) (206,076) (209,065)
Loss from discontinued operations RAmEREE ARNG
attributable to equity holders of the RIEE R T 2 B e
Company (HK$'000) (F&1r) (2,600) (436)
Loss attributable to equity holders of the A FlHEZSIHA AFE(S
Company (HK$’000) ZIESE(FET) (208,676) (209,501)
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITERRZ NE
shares in issue (’000) FHE(TFR) 716,190 655,560
(b) Diluted (b) #E
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per AR RG] HAITE 2 BEBRRRE &L AT #
share for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 BELFEHEREABEEERESY
as the Company’s outstanding share options and £ A £20184F £ 2017 F 3 A 31
convertible bonds have an anti-dilutive effect on the BIEFEEZERESEEEGRER
basic loss per share. E51EFEE] ©
DIVIDEND
BE

The Board has recommended not to declare dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Furniture,
Land and improve- Motor fixturesand ~ Computer
buildings ments vehicles  equipment  equipment Total
B %B
THRET AENELE RE e ERRfE @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET AT FET AT
Cost 2
At 1 April 2016 72016 F4 A1 A 29,782 64,974 5,541 16,122 17,222 133,641
Additions E — 7,430 641 1,299 187 9,557
Acquired through business BREBAMHETNE
combinations (note 37) (H1:237) - 724 - 5 45 774
Disposals e —  (18634) (2,137) (163) (58)  (20,992)
Revaluation surplus EfR % 74218 — — — — 74218
Exchange differences ERES — (2,070) (31) (140) (383) (2,624)
At 31 March 2017 and R2017F3A 3B R
1 April 2017 2017F4A1H 104,000 52,424 4,014 17,123 17,013 194,574
Additions nE — 6,116 — 27 72 6,215
Disposals e (104,000) (5,301) (1,814) (1,924) (39)  (113,078)
Transfer to assets held for sale EXBEENELE
(note 26) (it 26) - (742) - - - (742)
Exchange differences ERES - 3,436 59 313 724 4,532
At 31 March 2018 120183 A 31H — 55,933 2,259 15,539 17,770 91,501
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
At 1 April 2016 20164 A 1H 11,348 57,013 5,341 15,265 15,422 104,389
Charge for the year FRHR 3,171 7,069 152 528 861 11,781
Impairment A — 1,105 — — — 1,105
Eliminated on disposal BHEHE — (17,124) (2,137) (161) (56) (19,478)
Revaluation surplus BitRH (14,519) — — — — (14,519)
Exchange differences ERES — (1,790) (29) (115) (304) (2,238)
At 31 March 2017 and R2017F3A31 B R
1 April 2017 2017F4A1H — 46,273 3,327 15,517 15,923 81,040
Charge for the year FNk — 6,140 207 549 504 7,400
Impairment PRI — 233 — — — 233
Eliminated on disposal BHEHH - (5,292) (1,814) (1,819) (39) (8,964)
Transfer to assets held for sale EEBEENEEE
(note 26) (Hi#26) - (236) — — — (236)
Exchange differences ERES — 3,110 55 255 650 4,070
At 31 March 2018 2018 F3 A 31H — 50,228 1,775 14,502 17,038 83,543
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2018 720183 A 31 H - 5,705 484 1,037 732 7,958
At 31 March 2017 20173 A 31 H 104,000 6,151 687 1,606 1,090 113,534
Analysis of cost or valuation BREASEE
At cost B — 6,151 687 1,606 1,090 9,534
At 2017 valuation 2017 E B 104,000 — — — — 104,000
104,000 6,151 687 1,606 1,090 113,534
Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
M- BERRE(E)

Impairment loss arises from the recoverable amount of the
leasehold improvement is lower than the carrying amount.
The recoverable amount has been determined based on
value-in-use calculation, which involves estimating the future
cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use
of the asset and applying the appropriate discount rate of
those future cash flows.

There are no bank borrowings secured on land and buildings
as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$104,000,000) (note 31).

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued individually
on 31 March 2017 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, at an aggregate
open market value of HK$104,000,000. A revaluation surplus
totalling HK$88,737,000, resulting from the above valuations
has been credited to revaluation reserve. If the land and
building not stated at fair value, the amounts would be as
follows:

REEMERE T RE S RERER
TRMmMELRERE - AJ eS8
REEREEAEIAET  EFF
Ritstim@EEREEMEL 2 RHKR
ERARBHAREAZERKR S
MEZBEBRE -

MR2018FE3 A31H - & R 17 &
B+ g F EER(2017F ¢
104,000,000787T) (B##£31) »

RNEEZ T R EFR2017F 3 A
S1HABYEXSERMMEMEBER
TERAREBER  AHATES
104,000,000 7T - A Lt {H{E MM &
Bz BEH A% 88,737,000 T
Bt AEMREE - WEBELHEETF
WIEAAFEINE  BESEE LD
T :

2017
HK$°000
TFET

Land and buildings T REF
Cost BXAR 29,782
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (11,945)
17,837

As at 31 March 2018, property, plant and equipment were
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment.

123
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
M- BERRE(E)

(a) Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment has been charged to the consolidated
income statement as follows:

(a) ERGERBRFHBRZEEEY
¥ BERREHEDOT :

2018 2017

HK$’°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Selling and distribution costs $HE & HAAR 6,246 7,544
Administrative expenses THEA 1,154 4,237
7,400 11,781

(b) Property, plant and equipment held under finance
lease

Motor vehicles include the following amounts of which
the Group is a lessee under a finance lease:

(b) REMEAEFHZVE BEER
]
REBEATAKRERERERER
EMAZEHE

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT F&r

Cost — capitalised finance lease KA —EBEREZRE
HE 491 942
Accumulated depreciation BEHAE (153) (435)
338 507

The Group leased a motor vehicle under non-
cancellable finance lease agreement. The lease term is
4 years and ownership of the asset lies with the Group.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 124

AEERBETAIHERERE HER
ERE-HBRIF MEEMARE
BALEME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BLEE

Computer
Goodwill Licence software Trademark Total
HE EREE B s wE wst
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FHET FET
Cost B
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A1 H - 318 18,491 69,566 88,375
Additions NE — — 17 — 17
Acquired through business ~ BBERKAGHET
combinations (note 37) ek (f5#37) 36,153 193,629 — — 229,782
Exchange difference ERZE — — (313) — (313)
At 31 March 2017 201743 A31H
and 1 April 2017 % 201754 A1H 36,153 193,947 18,195 69,566 317,861
Additions NE — — 9,612 — 9,612
Disposals HE - - (22) — (22)
Transfer to assets BERAFLEEE
held for sale (note 26) (W13 26) (36,153) (193,629) (9,288) — (239,070)
Exchange difference BEHER — — 548 — 548
At 31 March 2018 #2018 3 F31H — 318 19,045 69,566 88,929
Accumulated amortisation ~ R
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 718 - 318 16,618 69,566 86,502
Charge for the year FRM - - 806 — 806
Exchange difference EREE — — (235) — (235)
At 31 March 2017 201753 A31 A
and 1 April 2017 201744518 — 318 17,189 69,566 87,073
Charge for the year FERHR - — 589 — 589
Disposals HE — — (22) - (22)
Exchange difference BEHEER — — 485 — 485
At 31 March 2018 2018 F£3 A31H - 318 18,241 69,566 88,125
Net book value HREFE
At 31 March 2018 R2018F 3 A31H - - 804 — 804
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 36,153 193,629 1,006 — 230,788
Annual Report 2017/2018
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
BILEE(E)

Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

ERNGANREERMK B EERHE W

2018 2017

HK$°’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER 60 83
Administrative expenses TRER 529 723
589 806

Impairment tests for goodwill

In February 2017, the Group acquired a provisional licence
through acquisition of China Consume Financial Holdings
Company Limited (“China Consume”). The licence is a
provisional licence issued by UnionPay International Co.,
Ltd (“UPI”) which allows the holder to conduct payment
processing services for UPI credit cards in Hong Kong,
Japan, Korea, ltaly and France. Management projected that
China Consume would commenced its acquiring business
from 2019 onwards in the above five regions.

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of China
Consume during the year ended 31 March 2017. Please refer
to note 37 for details.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of China Consume
is allocated to e-Commence and e-Payment business
segment. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a twenty five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the twenty five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below.

For the impairment test for goodwill, the key assumptions,
revenue growth rate, long term growth rate and discount rate
used in the value-in-use calculations in 2017 are disclosed
below.

Revenue growth rate 10% to 128%
Long term growth rate 3%
Discount rate 21.23%

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 126

R R E R

R2017%28  AEEEBWEFTRYE
SRITERBER AR FEHEE]) NSEE
BRFERE - ZETEREARRHEES
BRAG([SREEEIRR )3 2 IR R arE A
o AR EARES  BA  8E - BX
F KRB TR B B R 2 B R B E R
%o BIEETER - PEUEB BN 2019 F i
P i R M [ B A U B R o

REZE2017FE3 AN BILFE  HEEB
WP BE B R - FFI5aE2HMIES37 -

WERBE R BFEAREIREETFEBER
BFENEBDE - BiE2017F3 H31H
IFFE ReEABMMTRESEETER
FREBEEMNFEET ZSHEERERE
BEAEN T HAF RV BEE 2 AR
SREBEE - BA-tAFHENRESRE
Tof# BT SRt B 536 R R R o

HREBRENR 20175 FHEEHE
ERERACEBER - KagRE - REE
RRRMBRN T XHE -

Wt R = 10% % 128%
REPERE 3%
gL & 21.23%
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17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
BELEE(E)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

Management plans to review the business performance
based on business nature. It has identified retail of footwear
and e-Commerce and e-Payment as the main businesses for
future operation during last year. However, the e-Commerce
and e-Payment business were reclassified as a discontinued
operation as at 31 March 2018. Details are set out in Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the fair value less costs
of disposal of the e-Commerce and e-Payment business is
approximately HK$193,000,000. These calculation use price
that would be received from selling the asset less any costs

AERERAEE)

EEBRLEREEEERMERERR - £
FEMTHETEEY  BETABLKETX
EEREFINEBERN2018F3 H31 H

EM O RRIEEEERT -
B BHRMIE26 -

BRAFBEN &

HZE2018F3A31BILFE  HEETH
BREFINEB(RFERHERAN) B
193,000,000 7L - 2 St EFEALEEE
1T U B E RIS AR 2 (E

required and needed to make the sale. AJER N o
Revenue growth rate 3% to 128% W R &R 3% & 128%
Long term growth rate 3% FHE £ & 3%
Discount rate 21.50% BRIR =X 21.50%
INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
REERAZRE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Share of net assets JE1E & EFE 510 510

Nature of investment in material joint venture as at 31 March
2018:

% of

Place of interest held

Name of entity establishment indirectly

BREE B3 3t B M EERZ %

Wealthy Trend International Hong Kong 51%
Development Limited

BERERERARAR EE 51%

127

M2018FE3 A31HREK

ZME
Nature
of the Measurement
relationship method
BEZMHE SrERREE
Joint venture Equity method
ER-VNS Bk

BERAZEE

Principal
activity
TEEK

Inactive

W EEHEE
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17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

REEQARZKRE(E)
Summarised financial information of joint venture which is BENR(HRABIEERNEE) 2HBER
consider immaterial: BE
2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Aggregate carrying amount of 1I5'J3F$7< MEZ AL RA]
individually immaterial joint venture WiRa g mE c REEE
in the consolidated financial statements 510 510
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share ~ AEBEHAEE AR ZHEE
of a joint venture:
— Profit or loss from continuing — HEEEEB 2 BE
operations — —
— Post-tax profit or loss from — RIS EB 2 RTEER
discontinued operations — —
— Other comprehensive income — Hith 2 EW & = —
Total comprehensive income ZHKERBEE = —
As at 31 March 2018, there are no significant contingent R2018F3A31H  MEFEAELEENES
liabilities and capital commitments relating to the Group’s ERRAIZER L ERKABERE AL o
interest in the joint venture.
18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REE AR 2R
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets BIhEEFE 6,530 7,227
Loan to an associate (note(i)) BRT—HBE AR (M) 3,662 —
10,192 7,227
Note (i) The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on Kzt () ZERBEIRHT REWEZERE
demand. 38 o

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
RBEDT 2B (E)

In February 2017, the Group acquired 8.64% interest in
Shanghai New World Information Industry Company Limited
(“Shanghai New World Information”) through acquisition of
China Consume (note 37). It was recognised as available for
sales financial assets.

On 27 March 2017, China Consume’s interest in Shanghai
New World Information increased to 34.13%. Shanghai
New World Information became an associate of the Group.
The entire interest of the Group in Shanghai New World
Information was then re-measured at fair value on 27
March 2017 and the fair value loss of HK$2,000 has been
recognised in other losses in the consolidated income
statement.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
March 2018. The associates as listed below have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
indirectly through its subsidiaries by the Group.

Nature of interest in associates as at 31 March 2018:

R2017F27 RNREBEFEBKRE+BEH
BYE LBt RESEXRRNDAR QA
(TEwEHtRIER |) 28.64%% a (M &
37) c HEHRRAHLESREE -

R2017F3H278 » FEIEEBR Lt
RIEBZHEFIEINE34.13% ° L/FFHHR
EERAAEB ZBE AT - NEEN EE
FtEREE 2 EERN2017F3 H27H
BAFEEHAE - BRAFEEIE2,000%5
TTERERE ek P R A EMEE -

AT #E P ARER A 20184F3 A 31 B 2Bt
Nale THBMERREAERTBRARK 2
BA  ERAEBEBEWNB R BER
ﬁ °

R2018F 3 A31 HREtE RN Al ciEm 2
Fxl

/

Place of

Name of entity establishment
BElEEE R i 26
Guangzhou Guoxin Guanfu ~ The PRC

Information Technology

Company Limited'

(“Guoxin Guanfu”) (note a)
BN EBNE AR h

ARAR ([EEEMA])

(Kizta)
Shanghai New World The PRC

Information’ (note b)
HEFtRER (HiEb) H

1

% of interest
held indirectly

BEREAREZ%

43.35%

43.35%

35.13%

35.13%

English translation is for identification purpose only.
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Nature of the Measurement  Principal
relationship method activity
BERME FTRAE TEXH
Associate Equity method  Settlement
services of
acquiring
business
/NS ‘% WERBKER
AR 7%
Associate Equity method e-Commerce
/NS BEE% BEFEK

RXEEEEENRE -
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18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

REENR 2 EH(E)

a) Guoxin Guanfu is an unlisted limited liability company in a) BlEENATRE—FHARLMBEREMR
the PRC and there is no quoted market price available naElc HROWEA 2 migmE o
for its shares.

b) As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of the b) H2018%F3A31H - LEHitFRE

BERLEEREREZXSHLEME
7 % 2 BR M 8 £ 6,530,000% 7T °
M2018%F3 A31H HEHERE
B2 AFEAEH o REARE2.13
T(2017F : AR #2300 )5 ) B
8,251,000/ JL(2017 4 : 6,645,000

group’s interest in Shanghai New World Information,
which is listed on the Shanghai Equity Exchange,
was HK$6,530,000. The fair value of Shanghai New
World was HK$8,251,000 (2017: HK$6,645,000) based
on its published price quotations at RMB2.13 (2017:
RMB2.30) as at 31 March 2018.

BT °
Summarised financial information of immaterial associate: IEAMEZBERR 2 BERE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Aggregate carrying amount of ERIEEXEE 24 &R T]
individually immaterial associates WiRe g mE 2 REEE
in the consolidated financial statements 6,530 7,227
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share ~ ANEEERZSHE AR Z
of those associates: #afg
— Loss from continuing operations — B EEBER (1,634) —
— Post-tax loss from discontinued — RIEREER ZRIEEE
operations (595) (54)
— Other comprehensive income — Hith 2 E e = —
Total comprehensive income 2 EW B (2,229) (54)

R2018F 3 A31H ' BEGEAREENE
BRARIZHEDZZEASREE  AEED
Bt ¥ & 637,000% 7T (2017 5 : 576,000 7%
TEABRINERBERNR 2 S ZIRE
RN

As at 31 March 2018, there are no significant contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associate.
The Group was contracted to inject HK$637,000 (2017:
HK$576,000) as investment capital in interest in an associate
in the future.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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20

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

AHESREE
2018 2017
FET FHET
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELETRAFZS - KA 6,248 —

One of the Group’s strategic investments is a 2.5% interest
in FRURAEBIEZEEABRAF. This company is not accounted
for on an equity method as the Group does not have the
power to participate in its operating and financial policies,
evidenced by the lack of any direct or indirect involvement at
board level.

For the above available-for-sale financial asset that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
FEERRAE

The gross movement on the deferred tax liabilities is as
follows:

REBRBEREZ —BRARNBEERESR
FRAFZ2.5% % o 2 A Al EIR i 5k
AR REARASREERESHEZ AR ZEE
MSEE  AEESE@R AW ERE X
ML mEpa 5 —5 -

FhE AR BT 5 Y B S WE kA ES
RS ECAHRIESREEARERY
BEBRXNBAARERATATIASEE 2
THETAME @ HRKAREMA S &R E
BBt E -

BELERARE 2 EEFHINT

Tax
Fair  depreciation
value gain allowance Total
AYE RERE
Wz SBE @t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
As at 1 April 2016 ©®2016%4A18 — 351 351
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) W B RE(HF37) 36,153 — 36,153
Charged to the consolidated income statement B4 W& ING — 235 235
As at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R2017F3 31 BRN2017F4A1H 36,153 586 36,739
Transfer to liabilities directly allocated with BRARELEFRBEE
non-current assets held for sale BERBHZAR (36,153) - (36,153)
Credited to the consolidated income statement ~ ZR&EAWEERRA — (586) (586)

As at 31 March 2018 #®2018F3A31H
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)
EEBRAE(E)

As at 31 March 2018, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised for the withholding tax as there is no distributable
profit for the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.
The income tax liability is not recognised where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised
temporary differences of approximately HK$905,312,000
(2017: HK$894,253,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses are subject to approval by
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and the PRC
tax authority respectively, approximately HK$492,367,000
(2017: HK$443,917,000) of unrecognised tax losses have no
expiry date and the remaining loss of HK$403,647,000 (2017:
HK$330,871,000) will expire in 5 years.

INVENTORIES

rE

Inventories represent merchandising stock.

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included

in cost of sales during the year amounted to HK$176,822,000
(2017: HK$279,665,000).

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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MR2018E3 A31H - MR AREEN B
Y HMB AR ER DIRE N  MEREIE
MABRELEHEEE - RELAFBAR
BIRE o WA B R B R = 58 2 0
- BERZE T ARAIREA A B R 2R E -
RIFTS TR AET TR -

AEEMNAERTEEBEBREAERYE R
E ¥ #) A905,312,0007% JT(2017 4 :
894,253,000/87T) + AJ A5 EE 0 R 2R FESR R
WA - ZEREERAD INSEERBER
KBRS E BRy & - 49492,367,000 %
JL(2017 £ : 443,917,0008 7T ) 2 A MERF
AR RE R B - T 403,647,000/
7£(2017 4F : 330,871,00057T) 2 EE G
5FWEM ©

RN EE -

FRNERAFI W AEERANFERAR
/176,822,000 7T.(2017 4F : 279,665,000
BIT) e
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

EWE S HKIE

Retail sales are in cash, by credit cards or collected by TEHENUES ERRKEEEQRNR
department stores on behalf of the Group. The department RAEBWE - BEAF—RAREHEEBH
stores normally settle the proceeds to the Group within 2 a2 E A AmAEEEEMSHRIE

months from the date of sales.

Wholesales are generally on credit terms ranging from 0 to 2 EEH-—KNTFO0EI30H -
30 days.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date at the FEWE GRENREARZEZREE Y 2
end of reporting period is as follows: REHITNT -
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 — 30 days 0—30H 19,724 25,926
31 — 60 days 31 —60H 8,827 6,558
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 2,527 2,069
Over 90 days 90 HM k 7,812 5,710
38,890 40,263
Less: Provision for impairment of trade ~ J& - JEUWNE 5 3IE 2 BB S
receivables (567) (512)
38,323 39,751
As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$18,072,000 M2018F3A31H: & W B 5 &% 1|
(2017: HK$13,362,000) were past due but not impaired. 18,072,0007% Jt(2017 4 : 13,362,000%
These relate to a number of independent customers and TO)EEEREW ERE - ZEFIEEL Z W
department stores for whom there is no recent history of AR R E R BIERPNEE RN A
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as B ZERWESHBEZREROTET ¢
follows:
2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
1 — 30 days 1—30H 8,300 6,109
31 — 60 days 31 —60H 2,527 2,069
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 1,451 1,593
Over 90 days 90 HI + 5,794 3,591
18,072 13,362
Annual Report 2017/2018
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
FEW B 5 FIE(E)

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$567,000
(2017: HK$512,000) were considered impaired and were
provided in full. The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to department stores. An aging analysis of these
receivables is as follows:

MR2018FE3A31H B W B 5 5% =1
567,000 (2017 4 : 512,000% T ) ¥
BEBRE WEFIREHEE - BERER
BEKGETZEEEARAMH - ZE5EK
HIEZREDTIT

2018 2017

HK$°’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Over 90 days Q0B L 567 512

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEWE B IERER B EEBMT

2018 2017

HK$°’000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

At beginning of the year REA 512 1,118
Written-off on provision of trade FEUE 5 BR SR R

receivables — (551)

Exchange differences PE 3 =5 55 (55)

At end of the year REL 567 512

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
include a provision for impairment of other receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the fair values of trade receivables disclosed above. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
FEW B 5 FIE(E)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated EWE HFIE 2 RES BRI TEBE -
in the following currencies:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 499 350
Renminbi AR 36,870 38,558
New Taiwan dollar Fril=No 954 843
38,323 39,751
The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates its JEWE 5 FIE 2 BRE @ BB H AT EAEE ©
fair value.
23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Be AARERHEMERFIE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current portion: MBS
Deposits ®e 4,052 10,712
Prepayments AT FRIAE 7,311 16,642
11,363 27,354
Current portion: TEEHER S -
Refundable advance payment (note (i)  FI:REFBNZIBE(H 2 () 98,881 —
Deposits b 13,257 12,220
Prepayments TETFRIE 17,111 6,144
Other receivables E e Y GRIA 4,040 9,471
Value-added tax recoverable AT el E R 2,725 4,179
136,014 32,014
147,377 59,368
Denominated in: BT E®REHE -
Hong Kong dollar BIT 28,603 32,268
Renminbi AR 19,753 26,679
New Taiwan dollar e 137 418
Euro BT 98,881 —
Others Hh 3 3
147,377 59,368
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23

24

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
Re  ANREREMERRIEE)

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values. The Group does
not hold any collecteral as security. No written-off have been
made for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil). No
impairment provision has been made for both years.

(i) In relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties, the
Directors have considered a construction plan provided
by the Milan Properties Vendor and considered
that other than the refundable advance payment
of Euro10,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$89,892,000), there are no further payment due and
payable within the next twelve months from 31 March
2018. As the Directors is considering to withdraw such
refundable advance payment within 1 year, the amount
is classified under current portion.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Be  ENRAEMEMEKFEZ RESH
HERNFERE - REBEWERA SRR
miEHER - BE2018F3 A1 HIEFEIW
EAEHMEE (2017 5 © ) - MEFEHEE
R (E R o

(i) BUERBYWHEMNS  EEEZEH
KEWMEBEFRME 2 EZRTE - IR
AP AT 3R 32 T8 5 2UIE 10,200,000 BT
(HEE 7 489,892,000 7 7T) LASS - A
2018 F 3 A31 HBET R K+ =@ A
BEE— PR RENFTIE  ARE
EFEFEEER—FRNIEMEMEATRE
TENFRIE - B RED A REES °

EWER
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Loan receivables U E R 130,873 —

The Group’s loan receivables, which arise from Hong
Kong and PRC, which are denominated in both Hong Kong
dollar and Renminbi respectively. No impairment loss were
provided for the above balances.

Loan receivables are unsecured, bear fixed interest and
are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the Group’s
borrowers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of
the end of reporting period is the carrying value of the loan
receivables mentioned above.

The Group has no past due loan receivables as at the end of
the reporting period.
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LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
EWER(E)

A maturity profile of the gross amount of loan receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on maturity date, is
as follows:

RIEHR - RIF
FE Y

|HI R B RS BR
ERER B MASEIIMT

2018 2017

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET TET

Within 1 year —FA 130,873 —
1 to 2 years —EWF — —
130,873 —

Certain loan receivables were subsequently renewed with
guarantee by an independent third party.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ETERKEREERCEE

JT TR -

H—BBIE=

BHERBELEEER
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITAFHRRE 53,514 32,839
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEER 53,514 32,839

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position are denominated in the following currencies:

BATEBHE

MBERRKRAZRE RIREFEEA

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 40,231 5,416
Renminbi AR 11,687 24,873
United States dollar ETT 194 124
Others Etb 1,402 2,426
53,514 32,839

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in
Renminbi are placed with banks in the PRC. The conversion
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

137

AEBAARBHEZRE RBITHEBRTR
RABZRTT - U FERAARBHE < &R
S RINE BB ST R BB PR 2 SMNE B

HIFR AR R B o

Annual Report 2017/2018

2017/2018 FFF 3f




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHEE

26

NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
BFEELHEZEEFE

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Investment properties (note i) wEMEHELI) = 14,730
Disposal group (note ii) mESE (AT 189,422 —
189,422 14,730

At 31 March 2018, the Directors intended to dispose of
e-Commerce and e-Payment business and accordingly
the assets and liabilities relating to e-Commerce and
e-Payment business were classified as non-current
assets classified as held for sale and liability directly
associated with non-current assets classified as asset
held for sale, respectively. In August 2017 and June
2018, the Group signed two MOUs with the potential
buyers to sell out the e-Commerce and e-Payment
business at consideration with reference to its market
value, respectively.

An independent valuation of the China Consume,
which non-current asset classified as held for sale
was performed by the valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited to determine the fair value as at 31
March 2018 by an income approach of fair value less
costs of disposal valuation method.

The following table summarises the China Consume
corresponding assets and liabilities as at 31 March
2018.

At 31 March 2017, investment properties classified as
assets held for sale situated in Hong Kong with carrying
value of HK$14,730,000 were pledged as a security for
bank borrowings made available to the Group (note 31).

During the year, the investment properties were
disposed at a cash consideration of HK$22,000,000.

An independent valuation of investment properties
classified as assets held for sale was performed by the
valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited to determine
the fair value of assets held for sale as at 31 March
2017. The following table analyses assets held for sale
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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26 NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

FEEHEZEERE(E)

Fair value hierarchy

DFEER

Fair value measurements

at 31 March 2017

MR201753 831 B2 A FEHNE

Quoted
prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HREE HiEEX BX
HERTS B AABER
ZHRE BAHE BAYE
(B14) (%28) (F34)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TrET TFET T
Description g
Recurring fair value measurements & &M QA FETE
Investment properties classified as D E BB HIEHEEERN
assets held for sale: KEME
— Hong Kong — & — — 14,730

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There
were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the assets held for sale at 31 March 2017
were determined on the basis of a valuation by a qualified
valuer in accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards
on Properties (2012 Edition)” published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, RICS Valuation — Professional
Standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and the International Valuation Standards (IVS).

As at 31 March 2017, the valuation of the commercial units
located in Hong Kong was determined by using the sale
comparison approach (Level 3 approach). Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most
significant unobservable input into this valuation approach is
price per square meter.
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26 NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

BEEHEZEEZRE(Z)
Valuation process of the Group (Continued) REBWLERE(Z)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair value less cost of disposal AEEREERER 193,000 —
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 506 —
Investment properties YR A = 14,730
Intangible assets mEE 239,070 —
Investment in an associate R—HEBERARCIRE 645 —
Current-assets REEE
Trade receivables, prepayment FEUNE S 708 « A RIE K&
and other receivables o fE W R IE 865 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFEER 744 —
Non-current assets classified as held ZSEABEEHEZ
for sale FREBEE 241,830 14,730
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JEHE 5 RIE K EoAth & < R IE (16,255) —
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEAE (36,153) —
Liabilities directly associated with HABABEHRLEEEZ
non-current assets classified as IRBEEEEEBZAE
assets held for sale (52,408) —
Net assets held for sale BEEHEEERE 189,422 14,730
27 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
B AR RE
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
ZEREE ZEREE B3R 1E st
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT FET
Authorised EE
At 1 April 2016, M2016F4H18 -
31 March 2017, 201743 HA31H *
1 April 2017 and 2017F4 A1H K
31 March 2018 2018 3 A31H 9,000,000,000 900,000 — 900,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRHBZE
At 1 April 2016 R2016%F4 B 1H 641,360,000 64,136 576,561 640,697
Issuance of shares B1Ilin (Kita
(note a and note b) KKratb) 74,830,000 7,483 96,942 104,425
At 31 March 2017, R2017F3 831 H -
1 April 2017 and 2017F 4 A1H K
31 March 2018 201843 A 31 H 716,190,000 71,619 673,503 745,122
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (Continued)
PR A K w8 ()

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 10 January 2017, Silver Summit Ventures Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with Golden Ahead International Limited
to acquire China Consume.

On 8 February 2017, all the conditions precedent set out in the
sale and purchase agreement had been fulfilled. Consequently,
China Consume has become a subsidiary of the Group with
effect from 8 February 2017.

The consideration amounted approximately HK$178,700,000,
which was settled in cash by HK$83,500,000 and by issuance
of 70,000,000 consideration shares of the Company to the
vendors which amounted approximately HK$95,200,000 as at
8 February 2017.

Detail of the transaction is disclosed in Note 37.

On 22 March 2016, Walker Group International Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with Claes-Goeran Fride
Hoeglund, David Arellano, and Vicente Arellano (together
the “Vendors”) to acquire the entire issued share in Design
Management Hong Kong Limited (the “Target Company”) and
the employee services of certain key employee of the Target
Company. On 31 August 2016, all the conditions precedent
set out in the sale and purchase agreement had been fulfilled.
Consequently, Target Company has become a subsidiary of
the Group with effect from 31 August 2016.

The consideration amounted approximately HK$12,225,000,
which was settled in cash by HK$3,000,000 and by issuance
of 4,830,000 consideration shares of the Company to the
Vendors which amounted approximately HK$9,225,000 as at
31 August 2016. Out of the total consideration, approximately
HK$12,033,000 was recognised as consideration for employee
services, while the remaining portion of approximately
HK$192,000 were recognised as the consideration for the
acquisition of the Target Company.

As at the 31 August 2016, the net identified assets of the
Target Company amounted approximately HK$192,000, which
is approximates to the consideration paid.

The consideration shares for the employee services have a
vesting period of 2 years, of which HK$483,000 was credited
to share capital and the balance of HK$8,742,000 was credited
to share premium account.

Walker Shop Footwear Limited subsequently entered into an
agreement to accelerate the vesting period with the employees.
All remaining share-based payment has been vested. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, share-based compensation
expenses HK$9,034,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
BXALHEREZRBRE S

A share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders’ written resolution of the
Company dated 21 May 2007. On 28 November 2016,
share options were granted to the Directors and to selected
employees under the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price determined by the Board of Directors
shall be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the grant date, which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares. Options are conditional on the employee
completing 1 to 4 year’s service (the vesting period). The
options are exercisable starting 1 years from the grant date.
The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

—IAE M ET BB RIE A AR B H A2007
FEAIHZREERE A AZRIESHEN
(IBRESTE]) - R2016F11 A28H -
ARABRBEERETFSNES NEKERSE
B B RRAE -

REEHEERET  LAKRIABUTSE
HrziRmE (QBRORELAMMAR
SERIRBIAEBARERMABF WS
B (b)EORERRHAMASEEXA
R e B MERMABFHRTE - &
(c)BipzHE - BREAFREE K124
FREEGREH) T AMEE - BREAIRA
B AR FRITE - ARRLEETE
FEFEEEARCBOREEBRAE -

R 502 B AR B 2 S Y A A
TIEEMT -

Average
exercise price
in Hong Kong Options
dollar per share (’000)
BRRMGZ B
BTEGTHEE (F17)
At 1 April 2016 R2016F 4 A1H — —
Granted on 28 November 2016 ©20164F 11 A28 AHFE T 1.45 41,000
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 MR2017F3A31 B X
20174 A1H 1.45 41,000
Lapsed Bk — (1,500)
At 31 March 2018 20184 3 A31H 1.45 39,500
Movement in the number of share option vested are as CEREEEIRESE ZEshmT
follows:
2018 2017
Number of share option vested ('000) Ci8REZERNOER(F17)
At 1 April n4A1H 41,000 —
Granted BEH — 41,000
Lapsed RS (1,500) —
At 31 March M3A31H 39,500 41,000
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POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
BERAMERERBRETE(E)

The share option outstanding under the Post-IPO share
option scheme at the end of the year have the following
vesting date, expiry date and exercise price:

Grant date

RHBEH

Vesting date

BEAB

Expiry date

[&% B 58

Exercise price

RELREERAFREREBRAES SR
TEzEREzRBAY - EwAHRTR®
BT

Number of share options

28 November 2016
2016 11 A28 H
28 November 2016
2016 F 11 A28 H
28 November 2016
201611 A28 H
28 November 2016
2016 11 A28 H

28 November 2017
2017411 A28 H
28 November 2018
2018 11 A28 H
28 November 2019
2019411 A28 H
28 November 2020
2020F 11 A28 H

27 November 2021
2021F 11 A27H
27 November 2021
202111 A 27 H
27 November 2021
202111 A 27 H
27 November 2021
2021 F 11 A27H

in Hong Kong (’000) outstanding at
dollar per share 31 March
BRRGOZ RIANBERITEZ
BITTEE BREHE (T6)
2018 2017
—E-NF —FT—+F
1.45 17,500 18,000
1.45 17,500 18,000
1.45 2,250 2,500
1.45 2,250 2,500
39,500 41,000

Share option expenses charged to the consolidated income
statement are based on valuation determined using binomial
lattice model. Share options granted were valued based on
the following assumptions:

FEAGRE WSR2 R S T RER — 1R/
AHERVETF 2 HEFE - EROBRE
ZIEETRE T ARERFHE

Share price Annual
Option at the date Exercise  Expected risk-free Life of  Dividend
Date of grant value of grant price  volatility interest option yield
BB
REBAH FE A P BRER
R AH BREEE <ROBEK AT AHRE BEEBRE 18 ZRE
28 November 2016 0.6610-0.8400 1.45 72.03% 1.11%  5years 0.00%
2016411 A28 H 5%

Expected volatility of the Group’s share price was based on
the historical volatility of the share as at the date of grant.

Share option expenses of HK$15,531,000 (2017:
HK$6,808,000) was recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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29 OTHER RESERVES

R {445
Foreign ~ Share-based
Merger Statutory currency compen-  Convertible
reserve reserves  translation sation bonds  Revaluation
(Note i) (Note i) reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
SHRE EERE HE R TERES
(Wieti) (Hiati) RAaGRE HERE it EfifiE a3t
HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
AT FAr T A TEr AT AT
(Note 33)
(Wit s3)
Balance at 1 April 2016 (restated) 1201654 A1 A 248
(E5)) 22,002 23,954 43,999 - - 5,638 95,593
Currency translation differences EREE - - (13,889) - - - (13,889)
Revaluation on land and buildings B+t RIEF (4 15)
(note 1) - - - - - 88,737 88,737
Share option scheme (note 28) BlREatal iz oe) - - - 6,808 - - 6,808
Issuance of convertible bonds ¥maRER
(note 33) (H#33) - - - - 7,075 - 7,075
Utilisation of statutory reserves YRATHE - (59) - - - - (59)
Balance at 31 March 2017 201753431 R
and 1 April 2017 RoOTE4R 1268 22,002 23,895 30,110 6,808 7075 W35 184,265
Currency translation differences EfZR - - 15,030 - - - 15,030
Share option scheme (note 26) BRE 2 2) - - - 15,531 - - 15,531
Reversal upon disposal of land and ~ HELHEET
buildings 2BE - - - - - (94375)  (34375)
Balance at 31 March 2018 R2018E3 A3 B2 &8 22,002 23,895 45,140 22,339 7,075 - 120,451
Notes: Wiz
(i)  The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference () FTEEEHREEAQFEEITRAEE
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the BB EEARAT KRG LT EHA Mm%
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the FARRIZWBARIKRAEEZ Z% -
subsidiaries transferred to the Company in connection with the
reorganisation for the listing of the shares of the Company.

(i) Companies which are established in the PRC are required (i) RPBERKRILZAREREETFRAEE

to make appropriations to certain statutory reserves from
profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years and before profit distribution to equity holders.
The percentages to be appropriated to such statutory reserve
funds are determined according to the relevant regulations
in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the respective
companies. Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset
accumulated losses, to increase capital, or for special bonus
or collective welfare of employees. These statutory reserves
cannot be distributed to equity holders of the Company.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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30 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

BNEZHE - Bt BRAREtENRE

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade payables FERTE 5708 102,737 79,576
Accruals and other payables fEETE A R E AR 508 36,577 73,408
139,314 152,984

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as

RERBME D ZERANE SRR Z KRBT

follows: (TN
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 — 30 days 0—30H 12,323 26,351
31 — 60 days 31 —60H 5,239 17,127
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 1,020 2,525
Over 90 days 90 BHIA 84,155 33,573
102,737 79,576

The amounts are repayable according to normal trade terms ZERIER —RE FIEHERI0Z90HR
from 30 to 90 days. B8 -

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, accruals and
other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

RNE SR - B ERREMENREAEL
FRESERATERHE

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BIT 27,756 60,750
Renminbi AR 110,367 90,207
New Taiwan dollar e 975 1,851
Others HAth 216 176
139,314 152,984
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31 BORROWINGS

BE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term bank loan — secured RMHERTTER — BEF 5,130 72,240
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in EEERSBEUTERSE
the following currencies:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BIT — 67,000
New Taiwan dollar Gll=kic 5,130 5,240
5,130 72,240
The bank loans are repayable in range of 30 days to 90 days RITERARBEITAHEET30E90AR
from the date of issuance. g -
At 31 March 2018, a bank loan of HK$5,130,000 (2017: 7201843 4311 - #R 17 & 55,130,000
HK$5,240,000) was interest bearing at a fixed rate of 2.2% 78 70 (2017 4F : 5,240,0007%8 7T ) 1% & F
(2017: 2.2%) per annum and secured by the Group’s standby K2 2% (20174 : 2.2%) 5t 2 - WIA AR E
letter of credit amounting to US$1 million, a promissory note [# 2 1,000,000 cERAERAM - ARAE
of New Taiwan dollar 28 million co-made by the Group and =] 22 51 JE 4% IR AR ER A [R] ¥E H 2 28,000,000
the former non-controlling shareholder. et RN EREER -
The fair value of the bank loan equals its carrying amount, ﬁEﬁE%@Z@$T§$E%E@EE§E%§E )k
as the impact of discounting is not significant due to its short ARERAARE  RERPEL TEAF
maturity. e
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OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

& EA&IE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities-minimum  F&FHE & EEE —
lease payments: SEMAEMNRK
Within one year —FR 107 117
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZENF(BREEEMTE) 143 251
250 368
Less: Future finance charges B RRBEE R (24) (38)
Present value of obligation under finance &l&MHEAERE
lease 226 330
The present value of finance lease BREHEAERBENT
liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —FA 97 105
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEBRAT(BIEEREMT) 129 225
Present value of obligation under finance ®t&MH &E&ERE
lease 226 330

The weighted average effective interest rates of the
obligation under finance lease was 2.5% (2017: 2.5%) per
annum .

Interest rates are fixed at contract date. The lease was on
a fixed repayment basis. The obligation under finance lease
is secured by the lessor's charge over the leased asset.
The carrying amount of the obligation under finance lease
approximates its fair value and is denominated in Hong Kong
dollar.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS
A 2 R 1R 55

On 5 July 2016, the Group issued a 6% convertible bonds
(“CB-I") at a par value of HK$30,000,000. The convertible
bonds mature four years from the issue date at their nominal
value of HK$30,000,000 or can be converted into the Group’s
shares at the bondholder’s option at a conversion price of
HK$1.81 per share. The bondholder has right to redeem
the bonds after two years from the issue date at 108% of
HK$22,025,000 and the equity conversion component of
HK$7,075,000, net of transaction cost of HK$900,000 being
allocated proportionally to the liability and equity components,
were determined at issuance of the bond. The fair value of
the liability component included in long-term borrowings was
calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent non
convertible bond. The liability component is subsequently
states at amortised cost until extinguished on conversion
or maturity of the bond. The residual amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion component, is included in
shareholders’ equity in convertible bonds reserves.

On 24 August 2016, the Group issued a 10.5% convertible
bonds (“CB-II") at a par value of HK$150,000,000. The
convertible bonds mature three years from the issue
date at their nominal value of HK$150,000,000 or can be
converted into the Group’s shares at the bondholder’s
option at a conversion price of HK$1.845 per share. Since
the conversion features of CB-Il fail the fixed-to fixed
requirement for equity classification, it was recognised as two
components, liabilities component and derivative component
with a conversion option derivative of the holders and a
redemption option derivative of the holders. The liability
component and derivative component are recognised initially
at the fair value of the compound financial instrument as
a whole. Subsequent to initial recognition, the compound
financial instrument is measured at fair value as a whole,
with changes in fair value presented to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise. CB-ll is
under personal guarantee of Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, the Chairman
of the Company.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

ARRES(E)
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated REGEBIERARAER Z B E SN
statement of financial position are as follows: o
Financial
liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities through
at amortised profit
costs or loss
(“CB-1”) (“CB-II”) Total
REBHEAATE RATETARR
ZE@masE ZEmas
(TR @EH1)  ((TTERESHN) et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FEIT FEIT
As at 1 April 2016 H2016F 4 H1H — — —
Fair value of convertible BETIBRRES
bond issued ~NEE 30,000 150,000 180,000
Arrangement fee ZH B (900) — (900)
Equity component ez B (7,075) — (7,075)
Interest accretion F 2 18(E 3,041 — 3,041
Fair value gain recognised DR AN FEWR — (13,521) (13,521)
Interest paid BT A (907) (8,889) (9,796)
As at 31 March 2017 and 720173 A31H
1 April 2017 K2017F4A81H 24,159 127,590 151,749
Interest accretion A EIEE 4,535 — 4,535
Fair value loss recognised R AFEKE — 15,869 15,869
Interest paid ERFE (1,800) (15,750) (17,550)
As at 31 March 2018 M2018F 3 A31H 26,894 127,709 154,603
Representing: LAT 23 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Current portion BIEREL {7 17,550 17,550
Non-Current portion JEBNHAEL 137,053 134,199
154,603 151,749
Annual Report 2017/2018
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34

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
AR ES(E)

The fair values measurement of the derivative embedded to
the CB-lIl were determined by using binomial model, were
assessed by an independent valuer, with the following key
assumption:

B EEDE 267 TAATE B
B fh A F) = E SR T B
SHETEE

2018 2017

Valuation techniques fHE R
Discount rate Ah3R &

Risk free interest rate = R R
Time to maturity (years) T BAREFE (57 )
Expected volatility TE B 18

Increase in discount rate and volatility by 1% and 1% would
decrease or increase the fair value of derivative component
in convertible notes by approximately HK$1,567,000 and
HK$226,000.

CORPORATE BOND
DAEEZE

On 8 May 2017, the Group issued a two-year corporate bond
with principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of
12% per annum for the first year and 13% per annum for the
second year. The bond is guaranteed by Mr. Zhu Xiaojun,
Chairman of the Company, and is pledged by the shares of
the Milan Properties Vendor. The proceeds from the issuance
of the corporate bond were received by the Group in May
2017.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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35 NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
REREREBRWE

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax expense to (a)

R FAERABEESEXRTAZ

cash used in operations

RE 2 HER

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before income tax expense R FTiSHATES 18 (207,280) (209,636)
Loss before tax credit/(expense) RIMSE TS 2 RetRil e,/
from discontinued operations (R ATEE (2,689) (444)
Adjustments for: BTN EIEELFE
— Depreciation of property, plant — U BEREEC
and equipment e 7,400 11,781
— Impairment of property, plant — W BEREEC
and equipment VERED 233 1,105
— Net write-back of inventories — FEEEIFE (5,753) (6,669)
— Amortisation of intangible — BEEEEE
assets 589 806
— (Gain)/loss on disposal — HEWE - BB KEE
of property, plant and <z (z) B8
equipment (23,878) 1,051
— Loss on disposal of available — HEAHEESRMEE
for sale financial assets ol %= = 2
— Gain on disposal of assets — HERBEREE W&
held for sale (7,217) —
— Fair value gain on revaluation — REEHEEECEMR
of assets held for sale NEEWE — (830)
— Finance income — BIBBA (9,701) (15,823)
— Finance expense — WX 69,502 4,716
— Share option expenses — BEREMX 15,531 6,808
— Share-based compensation — RINEERS
expenses — 9,034
— Share of loss in an associate — (AR —REEE AR
&5 1,634 54
Changes in working capital: EEAEE
— Inventories — FE 51,356 88,327
— Trade receivables — JEWE FFRIE 5,882 29,734
— Deposits, prepayments — %% BENRIER
and other receivables ﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁzlm 14,547 21,610
— Trade payables — BB SHIE 17,514 (20,011)
— Accruals and other payables — fﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁfﬁm (21,922) (49,857)
Cash used in operations KEFAZE® (94,252) (128,242)
Annual Report 2017/2018
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35 NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FERERERMET(E)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METHRELEBIHIR:
activities
Obligation
Bank under finance  Convertible Corporate
borrowing lease bonds bond
(note 31) (note 32) (note 33) (note 34) Total
RITEE REHERE TRRES ARES
(Hii£31) (Hit32) (H17#33) (Hiit34) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET BT T FET
At 1 April 2017 201764 A1H 72,240 330 151,749 — 224,319
Changes from cash flow:  BH&REZEE
Issuance of corporate BIINEESR
bond - — — 329,000 329,000
Repayment of bank BRETEE
borrowings (67,110) — — — (67,110)
Interest paid BERFIE - — (17,550) (31,500) (49,050)
Capital elements of BERENTZ
finance lease payment BARED — (104) — — (104)
Total changes from MELERECE
financing cash flows FEE (67,110) (104) (17,550) 297,500 212,736
Accrued interest JEEHFI 8 (1,805) — — — (1,805)
Interest expense FIEHY 1,805 — 4,535 47,178 53,518
Changes in fair value ATECE - - 15,869 — 15,869
At 31 March 2018 F201853 431 A 5,130 226 154,603 344,678 504,637
Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
FRFzMBRRERFEEED

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AT ZEMBERRE
As at 31 March
MW3H31H
2018 2017
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Wizt FET FET
ASSETS B5E
Non-current asset FRBEE )

Interests in subsidiaries AN 305,998 378,820
R 805998 878,820
Current assets RBEE

Deposits, prepayments and Re - BRFER

other receivables e U R IR 110,853 216
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMS KT B~ R) 3R 1B — 2,167
Cash and cash equivalents RehRE&FBEIAR 1,844 789

112,697 3,172
Total assets EEHAE 418,695 381,992
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EAREREFEA

attributable to equity holders EERARHE

of the Company
Share capital &7 71,619 71,619
Share premium BiaE 673,503 673,503
Convertible bonds reserve RIS 8 5 36(b) 7,075 7,075
Share-based compensation & 1 #ei 15 f7 fs

reserve o 36(b) 22,339 6,808
Accumulated losses ZEHEE 36(b) (857,235) (533,267)
Totalequity 1 mames® . (82699 225,738
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals and other payables FE=T A R B fth FE A

] 2,113 4,505

Convertible bonds AR E 5 17,550 17,550
R R 22055
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Convertible bonds Al A 75 137,053 134,199

Corporate bond NEIESH 344,678 —

481,731 134,199
Total liabilities EEHAE 501,394 156,254
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEHEE 418,695 381,992
The financial statements were approved by the Board B R N 2018FE6 A2 HRKRE =
of Directors on 22 June 2018 and were signed on its @itk WHERREZE -
behalf.
Zhu Xiaojun Cai Jiaying
KRE BER
Director Director
o EFE
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37

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
ERBAzHBRRERBEEEE(E)

(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) EATZHEEE
Convertible Share-based

bonds compensation  Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
TRRESRREE ROBERE RitEE @it
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEn FE FE FET
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A1 H — — (298,385) (298,385)
Loss for the year AFEEBE — — (234,882) (234,882)
Issuance of convertible bonds BTABRRES 7,075 — — 7,075
Share option scheme (Note 28) BIRE B 28) — 6,808 — 6,808

At 31 March 2017 and R2017FE3A31BK

1 April 2017 20174718 7,075 6,808 (533,267) (519,384)
Loss for the year KEEFE — — (323,968) (323,968)
Share option scheme (note 28) iR B (frit28) — 15,531 — 15,531
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 7,075 22,339 (857,235) (827,821)

BUSINESS COMBINATION DURING PRIOR YEAR
BEFEZ2XKA6

In February 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in China Consume through a 100% owned subsidiary for a
total consideration of HK$178,700,000, which consist of a
cash consideration of HK$83,500,000 and issue of share
of the Company with fair value of HK$95,200,000 as at 8
February 2017 and obtained control of China Consume which
principally engages in e-Commerce and e-Payment business.

The intangible assets acquired through acquisition of
China Consume includes a provisional licence issued by
UnionPay International Co, Ltd which allows the holder to
conduct payment processing services for UPIl payments
in Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, ltaly and France. The
management expects the Group could expand its business
scope to e-Commerce and e-Payment business through the
acquisition of China Consume. The goodwill of approximately
HK$36,153,000 arising from the acquisition is attributable
to the anticipated profitability and net cash inflows of the
acquired business.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATION DURING PRIOR YEAR
(Continued)
BEFEZEBEHE)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for acquisition of China Consume, the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.

TERBAGETBIEE S 2 (E - PriE
BEZAFERRKWERSMAEZEE -

HK$’000
FEIT
Consideration: RAE -
— Cash consideration — RERE 83,500
— Equity instruments — BARTHE 95,200
Total consideration transferred BEERERRE 178,700
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets AEpEWEEEREARERRY
acquired and liabilities assumed: BRI
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 774
Intangible assets EEE 193,629
Trade receivables, prepayment and other JEWE H3RIE - TERRIEREA
receivables JE W IR 35,543
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets RAEHESREE IRE 1,793
Investment in an associates RELE R B ZRE 1,192
Investment in assets held for sale REEEREEEZIRE 3,360
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFBEIEAE 141
Trade and other payables FETE 5 5008 & E A FE - 5RI8 (6,169)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIAEE (36,153)
Total identifiable net assets Al RIFEEBRE 194,110
Amount due to the Group, net JERAREEBEFIE - JFRE (51,217)
Non-controlling interests IR (346)
Goodwill BES 36,153

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$540,000 have
been charged to administrative expense in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, China Consume
contributed nil revenue and had loss of HK$944,000 included
in the consolidated income statement of the Group.

Had China Consume been consolidated from 1 April 2016,
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2017 would show proforma revenue of approximately
HK$561,557,000 and loss of approximately HK$213,424,000.
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#1540,000/8 7T 2 B EHBE K AER
HZE2017F3 A3 A ILFEZHEAWER
FRATERR SR IR e

HE2017F3A3MHILFE AR EEBE
47 B 518 944,000 78 T B 5 AR E
EiZalER -

i EE B2 N2016F4 A1 HEA G
HE2017F3A31HIEFE 2 FEaRER
1527 Wz 4 561,557,000 78 7T M &5 18
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

B 7% [ B i B
38.1 Financial risk factors 38.1 IR BEER
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial $*§ EEXmEZETERE M5
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and g (BEIINERR EFMERERE) - 5
interest rate risk), credit risk, price risk and liquidity Eﬂ B RE R ,,&jjéf%ﬂﬁ 0
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme HS%Z%%%%EL@%@EF?%?H’%&}
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets BhT 5 2 AR - WESKAFE AR
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the %Eﬁ%%fﬁz;ggxﬂ%%ﬁggf
Group’s financial performance. K -
Management regularly manages the financial risks of ﬁéﬁﬁ,ﬂsﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁz,ﬁaﬂ‘%ﬁlﬁﬁ °
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial ARAREEFLE %&Iﬁﬂ%%@%ﬁ
structure and the current operations of the Group, B MEIRBI RETEME XL
no major hedging activities are undertaken by SEE) o
management.
(a) Foreign currency risk (a) sPEEkE
The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and REBFENREBNFHEE -
the PRC. Transactions are mainly conducted in REFEUNSEEBERBZNEE
the functional currency of each group entity and WETT - FEINE RS R o
therefore the foreign currency risk is considered to
be minimal.
The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies AR Z B INE BB TR E
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign T FiT 87T 2 N & 135 Bl e vk
exchange control promulgated by the PRC iR o
government.
(b) Interest rate risk (b) FIEEEE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily AEEBzNERBREZRSE
from loan receivables (Note 24) and borrowings & K 5E24) )SUE.T (Bt 5%
(Note 31). Income, which both are carried at fixed 31) « WA R IREEF KB °
interest rate. At 31 March 2018, the Group has no R2018F 3 A31H » AEREW
cash flow interest-rate risk as there are no loan EIBGREMNRER  BEEAW
receivables and borrowings which bear floating HEEKEE &FET@%@JTUTJ
interest rates. The following table details the B TREFIARNEBRBEHR
interest rate profile of the Group at the end of the Z FIRAR S ©
reporting period.
2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate HK$’000 interest rate HK$’000
BERER=E FET ERERE FHET
Fixed rate borrowings EEEE
Borrowings B 2.2% 5,130 2.2% 5,240
Less: Loan receivables - EIER 10.36% (130,873) — —
Total net borrowings BEETE (125,743) 5,240
At 31 March 2017, borrowings denominated in BR2017F3A31H - BEUE
HK dollar were carried at variable rate. If interest TCETEILLOZBYVFZEET B o fin A
rate of borrowings denominated in HK dollars had BILEFEEEZNE LA /T
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all P50 8 E 2 - AT A H il &
other variables constant, the Group's loss after WIRTE - QRSB 2 BRTZE
tax and accumulated losses would have been BRIEFEEBEGMN B L
approximately HK$28,000 higher/lower. 28,000 87T ©

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BEREE(E)

38.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, as well as credit exposures to trade
and other receivables. Management has policies
in place to monitor the exposures to these credit
risks on an on-going basis. Deposits are placed
with major and sizeable banks with high credit
ratings and management expects no losses from
non-performing banks.

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 60 days from the invoice date.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have no
significant defaults in the past.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that wholesale sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

The Group’s credit risk also attributable to its
loan receivables. The Group’s policy is that all
the borrowers who wish to obtain loans from the
Group are subject to management review. The
Group also obtain the guarantee support directly
or indirectly to cover its risk associates with loans
receivables.

The Group also makes deposits (current and
non-current) for rental of certain of its retail
sales point with the relevant landlords. Including
the refundable advance payment for the Milan
Properties, management does not expect any
loss arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting dates is the fair value of each class
of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables.
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BBEREE(E)

38.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 38.1 MRABREZE(Z)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) TEEZEE
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group B ZE2018F3H31H It F

reported a net loss of HK$209,383,000 (2017:
HK$210,196,000) and had a net cash outflow
from operating activities of HK$96,172,000 (2017:
HK$129,865,000). As at 31 March 2018, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$53,514,000. On 8 May 2017, the Group
issued a two-year bond with principal amount
of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of 12% per
annum for the first year and 13% per annum for
the second year. The bond is guaranteed by Mr.
ZHU Xiaojun, Chairman of the Company and is
pledged by the shares of China Investment S.p.A.
The Group would redeem the bond at its principal
amount HK$350,000,000 in May 2019.

In view of these advance factors, a series of
remedial measures to mitigate the liquidity
pressure have been taken to improve its
financial and liquidity position of the Group as a
whole. Details are disclosed in Note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
M ERERE(E)

38.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 38.1 BIEABREEZ)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) nEBELEREE)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the end of reporting
date to the contractual maturity date. The
accounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.

TREBREEREZEAOEHA
R T B 2 B B B B B D AT AR
SEZEREE RPAREZ
T R IR AR AN SR B R] 4% SRS K
ZEFEHAEZAHRMEAR

=
%//lbi ©

Between
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
1R 1EB58 st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2018: 2018 &
3A318:
Other payables, accruals and E At T FRIE -
other liabilities FERT A R H A
afs 36,687 143 36,830
Trade payables FERTE 558 102,737 — 102,737
Borrowings EE 5,138 — 5,138
Corporate bond NEES 44,625 361,375 406,000
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 17,550 187,957 205,507
206,737 549,475 756,212
As at 31 March 2017: MN2017 &
38318 :
Other payables, accruals and HAb /I -
other liabilities FERTEIA R H A
afs 73,525 251 73,776
Trade payables FEfTE 55008 79,576 — 79,576
Borrowings BE 72,302 — 72,302
Convertible bonds AR ESH 17,550 229,903 247,453
242,953 230,154 473,107
Annual Report 2017/2018
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
P ERERE(E)

38.2 Capital risk management 38.2 EXREBEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to KEBEBHEEA BZAMRAE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BlEMIFERLE - N AR RIRHEDR
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders MAEHMFEMNERERZR  RSERE
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an BIEZ BAREBARIKE R o

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BIRIBNAREAREHE  AEEe
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to FERNFREZIRESEE - EOE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new RFHE -« B TH RS & & E R
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. KER -
The Group’s capital structure is being reviewed annually RNREBFTGERTERGRE - TR
to ensure these objectives are to be achieved. EDZERE
During the Year, the Group’s strategy was to maintain RAEE  ANEEBZFBABEES
a gearing ratio within 70% (2017: 40%). The gearing B REFN70%(2017F : 40%)
ratios at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were as follows: Ao R2018F K2017E3HA31H 2
BEABLXRNAT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Borrowings (Note 31) BE (M2 31) 5,130 72,240
Corporate bond (Note 34) NAEVESH (M5t 34) 344,678 —
Convertible bonds (Note 33) AT AR (& (A7 71 33) 154,603 151,749
Obligation under finance lease A M E A 32)

(Note 32) 226 330
Total debts BB 504,637 224,319
Total assets BERE 734,639 631,341
Gearing ratio BEAGBLHE 68.7% 35.5%
Note: The calculation of gearing ratio is based on the total Kzt - BEARBHERNIZ3IA3IBZESE

debts divided by total assets as at 31 March. BERNEERERE -
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
M ERERE(E)

38.3 Fair value estimation 38.3 AF{EfET

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREHIZTE A FERA-BERI

instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2018 BABBERO M AEEN 201843

by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to A3 BERATEIR 2 eMIA - F

measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into B ASBIEUAT =EATFESFRY

three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: -

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for e ARAENBEEERTS W
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BORKAR)(B1R) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within o FBABBEME I B AR
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, B FEBARBREENEE
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that AR EE (BIERS) s ME
is, derived from prices) (level 2). (BVREEBR)FEH(E2R) °

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o WINTFEEMISEBRRE L
on observable market data (that is, unobservable B E B ER ASE RN &R
inputs) (level 3). R ABE)(EIR) -

Please refer to Note 15 and Note 26 for details of the BN RRATEFEZ L EEF

land and building and assets held for sale measured at RBEELEZEAEZFE w23

fair value respectively. 515 KI5t 26 °

The following table presents the Group’s financial TREWAEEIRZRAFEFEZSRE

liabilities that are measured at fair value. BfE-

As at 31 March 2018 7201853 A31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1K E2k E3IR Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Liabilities =R

Convertible bonds (CB-Il) A% {E*
(ATHRRRES 1)
— financial liabilities at fair — IR FEFTA

value through profit or Bamseomas
loss — — 127,709 127,709
Total financial liabilities BEAFHEFTEZ
measured at fair value CRVEELRE — — 127,709 127,709
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BBEREE(E)

38.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017

38.3 AR EMGF(E)
M2017%3HA31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER E2M FE 3 @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET

Liabilities =L
Convertible bonds (CB-1)  FAI#p& (&%
(ATHRRRES )
— financial liabilities at fair — RAFEETA
value through profit or Bmsema’

loss — 127,590 127,590
Total financial liabilities BRATEFEZ
measured at fair value S REERTE — 127,590 127,590

The valuation techniques used for the valuation of fair
value of convertible bonds and the movement of the
convertible bonds recognised as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss during the year are
disclosed in Note 33.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

The carrying values of trade and other receivables
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments. There were no transfers between
level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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39 COMMITMENTS

EiE
(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had no
capital commitments.

Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments and
turnover rental expenses under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops, offices,
warehouses and furniture, fixtures and equipment are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

EXEE

R2018F 201763 A31H » &£
B £ B AR o

REHERRE

BREEETESE HAE EEEK
il KERRBZ A HEEEMEE
RBERzREBENKIIREE R
BHEeER2EBNT ¢

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Land and buildings T RIEF
— No later than 1 year —1FR 28,463 49,175
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FREIZRH
than 5 years 54 7,674 24,789
— Later than 5 years — ZR5F — 359
I e
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ik~ KERE
— No later than 1 year —1FR 333 230
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FREIZR
than 5 years 54 1,125 1,458
1,458 1,688
37,595 76,011

Leases are negotiated for varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal options. The operating lease
rentals of certain outlets are based on the higher of a
minimum guaranteed rental and a sales level based
rental. The above operating lease commitments include
commitments for fixed rent only.

In addition, rental payable in some cases include

additional rent, calculated according to gross revenue,
in excess of the fixed rent.
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40 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

EXBABALIRS

(a) Key management compensation

During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related parties:

(a) FEEEBAEWHE

AEERFRNEBABALETTIIE
AR5

2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Key management compensation FTEEBAEHE

Basic salaries, housing allowances, AR - FEEM -
other allowances and benefits-in-kind ~ E #3285 & B ¥ F 25 6,912 12,235
Share options expenses BB RER 2 11,682 4,997
Share based compensation expenses A #ER — 6,063
Contributions to pension plans RIRBET B 18 44
18,612 23,339

Note:

Key management includes directors and certain senior
management who have important roles in making operational

and financial decisions.

(b) Year-end balances

Mzt -

TRERANERREERETREERY
BARARAEEREZRNERAS -

(b) FRER

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Amount due from an associate JE Wy — EIES & A RIFRIE
— Prepayment — TERRIE 7,311 6,603
— Loan to an associate — BT —HEE AR 3,662 —
Amount due from a related party JE W — % BB A T3R8
— Refundable advance payment — AREFENKIE 98,881 —
Amount due to a related party JE < — % AR A T RUB
— Other payables — HibERIFIE 626 3,010

Note:

Refundable advance payment related to the purchase of the
Milan Properties from a related party (Note 23). Other payables
with related parties are repayable on demand, unsecured and

non-interest bearing.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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1

SUBSIDIARIES
B

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

March 2018 and 2017:

Place of incorporation

T3] /H20184F k201743 H31H 2 *
EMBREIIK

and kind of Principal activities and Particulars of
Name of company legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
RREMH AMREHREREREN IEXBREEHREE CRITREFE Pz
2018 2017
Directly held:
EERH:
Carlyon Investment Holdings The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 10,000 ordinary share of ~ 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each
RESREERAERAR HERUEE  ARAF REZR/ BB 10,000 @M1 ETZ &
A
Genius Earn Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 90 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each
BRERERRAR RBRUEE  ARAR REER/BE 0B FTL 2 BERK
Silver Summit Ventures The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1  100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
REEIRERAF RBRUEE  ARAR REER/BE 1RER1ET TER
Indirectly held:
BEER
Artemis Footwear Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Retailing of footwear in 10,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
company Taiwan shares
K EEBRAF BB BRAF TEEE /BE 10,000,000 A& & 4 i
Ascent Pride Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1  100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
AHBREBRRT RBRUBE  ARAR REZR/EE 1RERIETZEBR
Asia Glory Investment Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
ELEREBRRF EE BRLA REZR/EE 1B Ak
Billion International Trading  The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in  US$1,000,000 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Company owned enterprise limited the PRC
Limited liability company
REERES(LE)AR hE HEBECEXERAR TEEHE/TE 1,000,000 7T
N
Carlyon Asset Management Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Asset management in 5,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong shares
BESEEERARAA E& BRAA BEERE/BE 5,000,000 i & i A%
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1

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MR (E)

Place of incorporation

and kind of Principal activities and Particulars of
Name of company legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
ACEE ] MR EHREREREN IEXBREEFREE CROTREFE Pz
2018 2017
Carlyon Capital Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Inactive 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company
RESERERAF B BARAR WEEBEE 100,000 i & 3@ A%
Carlyon Exchange Limited®  Hong Kong, limited liability  Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100% —
company
RESMESRAR" B BRAR WEEBEE 10,000 iz & B
Carlyon Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Money lending in 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RERHEER AT E& BARAR wE/ &E 100,000 fix & 58 i
Carlyon Securities Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Securities dealing in 10,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
company Hong Kong shares
BREBEFBRAF BB BARAR BHEE/BE 10,000,000 f& & i fix
China Consume Financial Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding, 60,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Holdings Company Limited ~ company e-Commerce and shares
e-Payment business in
Hong Kong
REDEESRERERLRE  BE ARAA RERR - EFEBR 60,000,000 B
ERSANE L V&N
Citiward Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
HEMER AR B BARAR REER/ BB 1T @R
Design Management Hong ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 300,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Kong Limited* company Hong Kong
BB BRAF REERBE 300,000 % & @Ak
Million Fortune Star Limited Hong Kong, limited liability = Corporate secretary 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company
EREBRRAA EF&  BRAA RAMWE 1T B
Senet International Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Holding of trademarks in 10 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
BEaBREARAR % BRAR REBE/ BB 10 IR E Bk
Silver Focus International Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
ERERERAT] &% BRAR REZR/BE 100 fic & 1
Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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1

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MR (E)

Name of company
NEEW

Place of incorporation
and kind of
legal entity

L B S 30 B Bk R B R A R

Principal activities and
place of operation
TEEBREERER

Particulars of
issued share capital
ERTRAFE

Interest held

Smart Sky International
(Beijing) Limited"

HRBERES(ER)ER
NI

Smart Trend Trading
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

HEE SR AERDA

Smarter Trading (Beijing)
Company Limited

BERES(IER)ERATF

Surplus Jet Investments
Limited

REREBERRA

Treble Berry Limited

Triple Juicy Limited

Trunari Enterprises
Company Limited

ENALEARAF

Vervestone Limited

The PRC, wholly foreign-

owned enterprise limited

liability company

hEHEBECEARAR

The PRC, wholly foreign-

owned enterprise, limited

liability company

RE A EBECEARAT

The PRC, wholly foreign-

owned enterprise, limited

liability company

REIEBECEARAT

The British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RBRAHSE  ARAA

The United Kingdom, limited

liability company
®E - ARAF

The United Kingdom, limited

liability company
ZE - ARAA

Hong Kong, limited liability

company

B BRRA

The United Kingdom, limited

liability company
2B BRRA

Trading of footwear in
the PRC

BEER/THE

Retailing of footwear in
the PRC

TEER/TE

Retailing of
footwear in the PRC

TEEE/TE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REER/BE

Inactive

WEEBISE

Holding of trademarks

HERER

Holding of trademarks
and properties in Hong
Kong

REBGERNE /BB

Investment holding in the

United Kingdom
RERRHE

167

HK$2,800,000

2,800,000 % 7T

HK$41,000,000

41,000,000 87T

HK$40,000,000

40,000,00078 7T

1 ordinary share of
US$1
1RER1ET2 EER

1 ordinary share of
£1 each
1TRER &g TRk

1,000 ordinary shares of
£1 each

1,000 &M 1 582
3l

22,000,000 ordinary
shares

22,000,000 i & 3%

2,000 ordinary shares of
£1 each

2,000 G 1 B2
HEH

P R
2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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1

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MR (E)

Place of incorporation

and kind of Principal activities and Particulars of
Name of company legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
ACEE ] MR EHREREREN IEXBREEFREE CROTREFE Pz
2018 2017
Walker Group (Shanghai) The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ US$200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise, limited the PRC
liability company
ERREARESH(LB)ER  HE IEBELEERLAF TEER/TE 200,000 7T
NG
Walker Group China Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong
BESE(PE)ARAA &% BRAR REZKR/EE 100 fix & @
Walker Group International ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong
BESE (AR BRAA &% BRAA REZR/EE 100 R E B
Walker International Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Wholesaling of footwear 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Footwear Limited company
BERREXERAF E® BRRAA HEEE 100 A & @ik
Walker Shop Footwear Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding and 500,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited company retailing of footwear in  shares
Hong Kong
BB BRAF REZRRTEEE/EH 500,000,000 1% & i
BINEBHERRTBRAE  The PRC, wholly foreign- Product design and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
owned enterprise limited technology in PRC
liability company
hE - SMNEBECKBERAR EmRREE/TE  ARE1,000,0007T
ENBEEZHERDF The PRC, wholly foreign- Trading of footwear in HK$1,500,000 100% 100%
owned enterprise limited the PRC
liability company
hESNEBECEBERAR BEER/T 1,500,000/ 7T
BE®EEEEHLAR~AR]  The PRC, foreign and Information technology ~ RMB100,000,000 85% 85%
domestic owned enterprise
limited liability company
hECHIFERASELE AERK AE#100,000,000 T
ARRA
LEBREEERAR The PRC, foreign-owned Sales and marketing RMB16,000,000 85% 85%
enterprise limited liability
company
hE - SMEEEBRAF 5% R 8l AR 16,000,000 7T
Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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1

42

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
MEBAR(E)

The English names of certain companies represent the best
effort by the management of the Group in translating their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

The company name of the company has changed to Carlyon
Immigration Consulting Limited on 7 June 2018 and disposed
to an independent third party on 7 June 2018.

The company name of the company has changed to Carlyon
Properties Limited on 17 May 2018 and disposed to an
independent third party on 6 June 2018.

As legal requirement, all companies established in the PRC
and Taiwan have adopted 31 December as their accounting
date for statutory reporting purpose. All other companies
have adopted 31 March as their financial year end date.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD
BEPRRER

(a)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of e-Commerce and e-Payment business

During June 2018, the Group signed non-binding MOUs
with the potential buyers to sell out the e-Commerce
and e-Payment business at a consideration, with
reference to its market value respectively.

Disposal of financial services business

After financial year end, the Group signed MOU with
potential buyer to sell the financial services business at
a market consideration.

A stand-by revolving loan facilities granted by
independent third party

On 20 June 2018, an independent third party
granted a stand-by revolving loan facilities of up to
RMB200,000,000 to the Group, which is available to
drawn down on or after 21 June 2018. The loan facility
is guaranteed by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, the Chairman of the
Company, and bears interest at 18% per annum.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEHBEHME

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

meEWREmE
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A3BLEE
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& E75) (&e&=51) (g=51) (lmE=5)
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET & FHET FHET
Continuing operations BEQEER
Revenue Wz 346,157 561,557 840,658 1,090,668 1,299,154
Cost of sales SHERAR (171,069) (272,996) (357,342) (473,751) (616,940)
Gross profit EF 175,088 288,561 483,316 616,917 682,214
Operating expenses KEE A (355,485) (513,646) (642,913) (719,836) (909,209)
Other gains/(losses), net Hilgs/ (B18) - FE 30,552 (400) (394) 8,262 (162)
Other income H A 4,000 4,742 4,277 7,035 12,029
Operating loss meEE (145,845) (220,743) (155,714) (87,622) (215,128)
Finance (costs)/income, net B%(BR),/ WA - FE (59,801) 11,107 (524) (489) (332)
Share of loss of an associate ~ [E{hR—FEEZ QA2
B8 (1,634) — — — _
Loss before RetFiEHESR (X))
income tax credit/ AIE 8
(expense) (207,280)  (209,636) (156,238) (88,111)  (215,460)
Income tax credit/(expense) FriEiEse,/ (ML) 586 (116) (656) (2,415) (13,902)
Loss for the year rEEFE (206,694)  (209,752) (156,894) (90,526)  (229,362)
Continuing operations FEREED
Attributable to: FEfG
Equity holders of the Company A2 AJ#EZREE A (206,076) (209,065) (155,892) (89,546) (227,241)
Non-controlling interests IR (618) (687) (1,002) (980) (2,121)
(206,694)  (209,752) (156,894) (90,526)  (229,362)
Dividends 3350 — — — — —
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HEFMBEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HREMBRRE
As at 31 March
M3HA31H
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(/=E51) (f&E51) (rzE71))
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET F&ET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a joint venture ~ RAERRIZIRE 510 510 — — —
Investment in an associate REENR 2 RE 6,530 7,227 — — —
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BE & & 7,958 113,534 29,252 34,942 40,386
Investment properties BEYME - — - - 17,140
Intangible assets BREE 804 230,788 1,873 2,570 4,605
Deferred income tax assets BEEFEHEE — — — 6,091 9,547
Available-for-sale financial AEHESmERE
assets 6,248 — — — —
Long-term deposits and RHRe RIEFNFIE
prepayments 11,363 27,354 12,588 10,995 14,781
33,413 379,413 43,713 54,598 86,459
Current assets REEE
Inventories =& 97,010 132,594 223,446 242,388 320,393
Trade receivables U B 5 58 38,323 39,751 72,939 115,024 119,636
Deposits, prepayments and e~ BRRIEREM
other receivables [ MR IE 136,014 32,014 27,081 40,044 50,043
Tax recoverable EEqEEE — — — — —
Loan receivables JEUE 130,873 — — — —
Amount due from an associate  JEUES & A RIFIA 3,662 — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents ReNAEEEER 53,514 32,839 41,039 94,939 107,044
459,396 237,198 364,505 492,395 597,116
Non-current assets classified as DA BELHE 2
held for sales FRBEE 241,830 14,730 13,900 26,660 —

701,226 251,928 378,405 519,055 597,116

LIABILITIES afE

Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FER B 55E (102,737) (79,576) (104,026) (101,396) (128,095)
Accruals and other payables &zt & I H 4 e

1A (36,577) (73,408) (41,129) (53,193) (71,854)

Borrowings BE (5,130) (72,240) (44,920) (25,040) (5,260)
Obligation under finance lease & E&HE (97) (105) (106) (106) (106)
Current tax liabilities EEATIRAE (1,077) (973) (1,102) (1,001 (3,108)
Convertible bonds HRRES (17,550) (17,550) — — —

(163,168) (243,852) (191,283) (180,736) (208,423)
Liability directly associated HAMRREELNE L

with non-current assets ERBEEEZIEM
classified as assets held for ZBE
sales (52,408) — — - _

(215,576)  (243,852)  (191,283)  (180,736)  (208,423)
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EFEHBEHME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mAauBRR T
As at 31 March
M3A31H
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&=E5) (E=E5) (E=E5)
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET & FET TFET
Net current assets REBEETE 485,650 8,076 187,122 338,319 388,693
Total assets less current EEABRRBER
__Vabilitles . BN 387489 230,835 392,917 475152
Non-current liabilities ¥nBeE
Convertible bonds Rl ES (137,053) (134,199) — — —
Obligation under finance lease & E&HE (129) (225) (9) (115) (221)
Corporate bond NEESH (344,678) — — — —
Deferred income tax liabilities  ELEFERH & & — (36,739) (351) (5,990) (5,989)
(481,860) (171,163) (360) (6,105) (6,210)
Net assets EEFE 37,203 216,326 230,475 386,812 468,942
EQUITY &
Capital and reserves BER NG
Share capital P& 71,619 71,619 64,136 62,356 62,356
Reserves & (33,649) 144,466 168,353 326,772 407,766
37,970 216,085 232,489 389,128 470,122
Non-controlling interests RS (767) 241 (2,014) (2,316) (1,180)
Total equity EHAH 37,203 216,326 230,475 386,812 468,942

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
HxEEZEREBR QA 172
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